AGENDA
RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETING - 6:30 P.M.
TUESDAY, JULY 17, 2012
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS
675 WILDWOOD AVENUE, RIO DELL

WELCOME . . . By your presence in the City Council Chambers, you are participating in the process of
representative government. Copies of this agenda, staff reports and other material available to the City
Council are available at the City Clerk’s office in City Hall, 675 Wildwood Avenue. Your City Government
welcomes your interest and hopes you will attend and participate in Rio Dell City Council meetings often.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this
meeting, please contact the Office of the City Clerk at (707) 764-3532. Notification 48 hours prior to the
meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to assure accessibility to this meeting.

THE TYPE OF COUNCIL BUSINESS IS IDENTIFIED IMMEDIATELY AFTER EACH TITLE IN
BOLD CAPITAL LETTERS

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. ROLL CALL

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
D. CEREMONIAL

E. PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS

This time is for persons who wish to address the Council on any matter not on this agenda and over
which the Council has jurisdiction. Items requiring Council action not listed on this agenda will be
placed on the next regular agenda for consideration, unless a finding is made by at least 2/3rds of the
Council that the item came up after the agenda was posted and is of an urgency nature requiring
immediate action. Please limit comments to a maximum of 5 minutes.

F. CONSENT CALENDAR

The Consent Calendar adopting the printed recommended Council action will be enacted with one vote.
The Mayor will first ask the staff, the public, and the Council members if there is anyone who wishes to
address any matter on the Consent Calendar. The matters removed from the Consent Calendar will be
considered individually in the next section, “SPECIAL CALL ITEMS”.

1) 2012/0717.01 - Approve Minutes of the July 3, 2012 Regular Meeting (ACTION) 1
2) 2012/0717.02 - Approve Janitorial Services Agreement with North Coast Cleaning

Services (ACTION) 8
-1-



3) 2012/0717.03 - Sale of 1988 International 3-Axle Flat Bed Truck to Rio Dell Fire
Protection District (RECEIVE & FILE) 11

4) 2012/0717.04 - Approve Lease Agreement with Doc-Station for a New Xerox 7545
Copy Machine (ACTION) 15

5) 2012/0717.05 - Approve Resolution No. 1162-2012 Rescinding Resolution No. 1120-2011
Approving Billable Rates for Staff Time for FY 2012-2013 (ACTION) 21

G. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS
H. SPECIAL CALL ITEMS/COMMUNITY AFFAIRS
1) “SPECIAL CALL ITEMS” from Consent Calendar
2) 2012/0717.06 - Preliminary Remodel Design for Kreations Auto Body (RECEIVE & FILE)

3) 2012/0717.07 - Designate the Community Development Director and City Manager
as Authorized Representatives to Approve Property Mergers (ACTION) 25

4) 2012/0717.08 - Approve Revised LACO Scope of Services Agreement (ACTION) 27

5) 2012/0717.09 - Follow up of Joint Study Session Discussion on the County General
Plan Update (ACTION) 35

6) 2012/0717.10 - Receive and File Certification from County Elections as to the Number
of Valid Signatures on Petitions for Placement of Ballot Proposition and
if Valid Number of Signatures are Certified Direct Staff to Proceed with
Placing New Street Improvement Bond Measure Before the Voters on
November 6, 2012 (ACTION) 38

[. ORDINANCES/SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS/PUBLIC HEARINGS

1) 2012/0717.11 - Conduct Second Reading (by title only) and Approve Ordinance No.
290-2012 Approving (or denying) the Albin General Plan and Zone
Reclassification (ACTION) 39

2) 2012/0717.12 - Approve Resolution No. 1153-2012 Amending the 2006 CDBG
Housing Rehabilitation Program Guidelines (ACTION) 63

3) 2012/0717.13 - Conduct Second Reading (by title only) and Approve Ordinance No.
291-2012 Establishing Design Review Guidelines, Section 17.25.050 of
the Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC) and Approve Resolution No.
1167-2012 Establishing Design Review Deposit/Fee (ACTION) 70

-



4) 2012/0717.14 - Conduct Second Reading (by title only) and Approve Ordinance No.
293-2012 Calling for an Election to be Held on November 6, 2012 and
Ordering the Submission of a Proposition of Incurring Bonded Debt for
the Purpose of the Construction of Street Improvements (ACTION) 84
J. REPORTS/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS
1. City Manager
2. Chief of Police
3. Finance Director
4. Community Development Director
K. COUNCIL REPORTS/COMMUNICATIONS
L. STUDY SESSIONS/PUBLIC HEARINGS
M ANNOUNCEMENT OF ITEMS TO BE DISCUSSED CLOSED SESSION AS FOLLOWS:
N. PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION
O. RECESS INTO CLOSED SESSION
P. RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION
Q. ORAL ANNOUNCEMENTS

R. ADJOURNMENT

The next Regular meeting will be on August 7, 2012
at 6:30 PM in the City Council Chambers

-3-



RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL
CLOSED SESSION
REGULAR MEETING
JULY 3, 2012

MINUTES

The Regular Meeting of the Rio Dell City Council was called to order at 6:30 p.m. by Mayor
Woodall.

ROLL CALL: Present: Mayor Woodall, Councilmembers Leonard, Marks, Thompson and
Wilson

Others Present: City Manager Stretch, Chief of Police Hill, Finance Director

Beauchaine, Community Development Director Caldwell, and City
Clerk Dunham

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS

Sharon Wolff referred to the $330,000 penalty imposed on the City by the State Regional Water
Quality Control Board (SRWQCB) related to the Wastewater Improvement Project and asked for
more information regarding the fine. City Manager Stretch explained that when there is a
deficiency within a project and you fix that deficiency you can file for a waiver of the penalty
stating that the City has filed for such a waiver and feels confident it will be granted.

CONSENT CALENDAR

Motion was made by Thompson/Marks to approve the consent calendar including approval of
minutes of the June 19, 2012 regular meeting; approval of Resolution No. 1160-2012
Confirmation of FY 2012-2013 Tax Assessment for 1978 Sewer Assessment Bonds; approval of
Resolution No. 1161-2012 adopting Gann Appropriations Limit for FY 2012-2013; and approval
of Progress Pay Request No. 4 to Wahlund Construction, Sequoia Construction Specialties in the
amount of $761,214.41 for work related to the Wastewater Treatment Plant Upgrade and
Disposal Project. Motion carried 5-0.

SPECIAL CALL ITEMS/COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

One-Way Streets and Town Center Zoning
Mayor Woodall announced this item will be continued to the July 10, 2012 Special

Meeting/Joint Study Session.

Consideration of a New Street Improvement Measure for November 6. 2012 Election

City Manager Stretch provided a staff report and stated that although the Board of Supervisors
has not yet certified the June 5, 2012 election results, his understanding is that the final count of
all ballots cast within the City of Rio Dell on Measure X fell short of the 66.66% voter threshold
by 25 votes. He said he heard a lot of comments from the community indicating that because of




JULY 3, 2012 MINUTES
Page 2

the close vote, the City should make another attempt on the measure at the November 6, 2012
General Election. He said the decision is up to the Council and should the decision be to move
forward, staff will need to begin immediately to prepare the necessary documents for the July 10,
2012 Special meeting. He said he was in contact with the Bond Counsel and learned that the
City would not be able to proceed with the same measure unless a petition is circulated and 15%
or 71 signatures are collected based on the voters of the City as shown by the votes cast for all
candidates in the last gubertorial election.

Councilmember Marks asked if Council members would be allowed to circulate petitions; City
Manager Stretch said he received conflicting answers to that question although felt confident at
this time that Council could circulate petitions. He noted the signed petitions would need to be
back to the City Council by July 17, 2012.

After further discussion, Council concurred to proceed with placing another Street Improvement
Measure on the November 6, 2012 ballot.

Clarice Cole volunteered to circulate a petition if needed.

Motion was made by Wilson/Leonard to proceed with placing a Street Improvement Bond
Measure similar to Measure X on the November 6, 2012 election. Motion carried 5-0.

Motion was made by Marks/Thompson to direct staff to prepare the necessary documents to
begin the process for a special Council meeting on July 10, 2012. Motion carried 5-0.

Direct Staff to Proceed with an RFP for a Wastewater Rate Study

Finance Director Beauchaine stated that currently the City charges wastewater fees on a flat rate
basis, and for some time has been considering switching to a consumption based fee model based
on water consumption. She said staff completed a market analysis and the cost range is too wide
for staff to recommend funding options and as a result has determined the best way to proceed at
this time is to prepare an RFP for a wastewater rate study which will provide the needed cost
estimates to proceed with funding recommendations.

Councilmember Wilson asked what the study would entail; Finance Director Beauchaine said
basically it would cover the cost of the engineer to evaluate the number of customers, software
capabilities, develop two models and make presentations to the Council.

City Manager Stretch explained the idea is to come up with a defensible fee model that is more
equitable for minimal users.

Councilmember Wilson asked what the cost is for putting out RFP’s; Finance Director
Beauchaine stated staff would prepare the RFP so the cost would be minimal.



JULY 3, 2012 MINUTES
Page 3

Councilmember Wilson commented that he looked at consumption base rate models from the
Cities of Eureka, Arcata and Fortuna and said it seems that, provided we have the software that
allows rates to be changed, it shouldn’t be a problem to set up a new rate structure. He said we
are not re-inventing something that hasn’t already been done and would like the cost of the study
defined.

Councilmember Thompson mentioned that he installed a circulated hot water system in his home
which saves him approximately 7,300 gallons of cold water per year. He said he is reluctant to
spend a lot of money on a study and said he would like to see a print-out of every home and the
usage.

Motion was made by Leonard/Wilson to direct staff to issue an RFP for a Wastewater Rate
Study. Motion carried 5-0.

Draft July 2012 Employee Handbook

City Manager Stretch stated the Employee Handbook has been a work in progress for a number
of years and before the Council is the latest version which has been circulated and reviewed by
the department heads and employee groups, and reviewed and approved by the City Attorney as
to its legal form. He said the recommendation is to present any questions or comments regarding
the draft handbook, “ receive and file” it and place it on the July 10, 2012 special meeting agenda
for consideration. Council concurred.

There was no public comment received regarding the draft Employee Handbook.

Status Report on State Budget and Potential Effect on Approval of M.O.U.s and Employment
Agreements
City Manager Stretch stated that with approval of the Employee Handbook comes approval of

the Employee M.O.U.s and various employment agreements. He said the salary adjustments in
part, were conditioned on receiving COPS/SLESF funds. He said the recently passed State
budget is balanced on the passage of the Governor’s November 6, 2012 sales tax increase
initiative and if the initiative doesn’t pass, there will be further substantial cuts in State programs.
At this point it is unknown if the COPS/SLESF funds are in jeopardy of being swept back by the
State. He said the purpose of placing the item on the agenda was to ask for Council direction on
possibly re-negotiating the employee contracts. In the meantime, he said he spoke to Senator
Chesbro’s legislative person and was told affirmatively that COPS/SLESF funds will not be
swept in the event the Sales Tax initiative does not pass.

Councilmember Marks asked if the City could legally rescind salary increases in the event
COPS/SLESF funding is later swept by the State.

Councilmember Wilson said he felt the Council should honor the M.O.U.’s in good faith as
agreed; Council concurred.



JULY 3, 2012 MINUTES
Page 4

Introduce and Conduct First Reading (by title only) of Ordinance No. 290-2012 and Approve
Resolution No. 1157-2012 Approving (or denying) the Albin General Plan and Zone
Reclassification

Community Development Director Caldwell announced the applicant called and requested the
item be continued to the next regular meeting on July 17, 2012.

A public hearing was opened at 7:22 p.m. to receive public comment on the proposed matter.
There being no public comment, the public hearing closed .

Approve Resolution No. 1153-2012 Amending the 2006 CDBG Housing Rehabilitation Program
Guidelines

Community Development Director Caldwell provided a staff report and said at the May 15, 2012
regular meeting, the Council considered changes to the CDBG Program Guidelines and made
some recommendations. He said Mayor Woodall raised the issue of whether or not the City is
obligated to provided Owner-Investor loans, and likewise, Councilmember Thompson suggested
that Owner-Occupied loans be given priority over Owner-Investor loans. He said staff checked
with State representatives and was told the City is not obligated to provide Owner-Investor loans.
Also, if the City should continue to offer Owner-Investor loans, the City may give priority to
Owner-Occupied loans.

Community Development Director Caldwell directed Council to the Rent Limitation Table in the
proposed Guidelines which shows the maximum rents which may be charged during the first
year after rehabilitation has been completed on a rental property. The maximum monthly rent for
a 1 bedroom is $670; 2 bedroom $882.00; and 3 bedroom $1265.

Discussion continued regarding composition of the CDBG Loan Advisory Committee.
Community Development Director Caldwell pointed out that the committee must consist of at
least 1 staff member. It was suggested that staff check with the State regarding the composition
of the loan committee with the possibility of having the committee comprised of staff members
and the City Council as the Loan Committee Appeal Board.

Finance Director Beauchaine said in the past the committee has been comprised of 5 City
Council members and 2 staff members to make an odd number thus eliminating the chance of tie
votes.

Community Development Director Caldwell said one suggestion would be to have the loan
committee comprised of himself, the City Manager and the Finance Director.

Mayor Woodall reiterated that she would like Owner-Occupied loans a priority over Owner-
Investor loans stating there were problems in the past with owner-investors not maintaining their
properties and some problems with payment of the loans.



JULY 3,2012 MINUTES
Page 5

Councilmember Marks said she didn’t have a problem with Owner-Investor loans because the
idea of the loan program is to address life-safety issues.

Finance Director Beauchaine pointed out that in the past the City did not have a Community
Development Department to follow up with compliance issues and now that we do, Community
Development Director Caldwell can handle portfolio concerns.

Councilmembers Thompson and Wilson agreed that Owner-Occupied loans should be a priority
over Owner-Investor loans.

Staff was directed to check on the status of the terms of the loan agreements relating to
requirements for maintenance and upkeep of the properties and whether Owner-Occupied loans
can be given priority over Owner-Investor loans.

Council concurred to have staff follow up with the State regarding the questions raised and bring
the item back to the Council at the July 17, 2012 regular meeting.

ORDINANCES/SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS

Introduce and Conduct First Reading (by title only) of Ordinance No. 291-2012 Establishing
Design Review Guidelines, Section 17.25.050 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code

Community Development Director Caldwell provided a staff report and said staff was directed to
prepare a draft ordinance establishing Design Review Guidelines in an attempt to enhance and
preserve the City’s scenic qualities, promote quality designs, landscaping and to protect and
maintain property values in the City. He said instead of recommending strict and rigid
development standards, staff is recommending basic guiding principles and design concepts.

He said the Planning Commission supported this type of approach and recommended approval of
the proposed Design Review ordinance as submitted.

He further stated the proposed regulations will apply to all lands within the City and will be
required for major subdivisions; multi-family residential developments; commercial
developments; industrial developments; and public/quasi-public developments such as public
facilities.

During discussion of the proposed Guidelines by the Planning Commission, it was also
suggested a Joint Study Session be held with the Council regarding identifying historic structures
in the downtown area and possibly establishing specific Design Review Guidelines for those
structures.

A Joint Study Session was scheduled for July 10, 2012.



JULY 3, 2012 MINUTES
Page 6

Community Development Director Caldwell commented that he was recently contacted by a
major retailer and had forwarded to them a copy of the draft Design Review Guidelines and they
were impressed and said they would have no problem working with them.

A public hearing was opened at 7:50 p.m. to receive public input on the proposed ordinance.
There being no public comment, the public hearing closed.

Motion was made by Thompson/Leonard to introduce and conduct first reading (by title only) of
Ordinance No. 291-2012 Establishing Design Review Regulations, Section 17.25.050 of the Rio
Dell Municipal Code. Motion carried 5-0.

Conduct Second Reading (by title only) and Approve Ordinance No. 292-2012 Approving Eel

River Industrial Park General Plan Amendment and Zone Reclassification
Community Development Director Caldwell provided a brief staff report and said the ordinance
is before the Council for its second reading and adoption.

A public hearing was opened at 7:55 p.m. to receive public input on the proposed ordinance.
There being no public comment, the public hearing closed.

Motion was made by Thompson/Leonard to conduct second reading (by title only) and approve
Ordinance No. 292-2012 Approving Eel River Industrial Park General Plan Amendment and
Zone Reclassification. Motion carried 5-0.

REPORTS/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS

City Manager Stretch reported on recent activities and announced the City was awarded a Safe
Routes to School Grant from the Department of Transportation in the amount of $152,300.

Chief of Police Hill reported on recent activities in the police department and stated he had been
on vacation for the past two weeks and that his department would be assisting Fortuna Police
Department on July 18" during their department meeting and also on July 20" for a Rodeo Week
Event.

Finance Director Beauchaine reported on recent activities in the finance department and said she
had completed the waiver request on the Civil Liability Complaint that was received related to
the Wastewater Upgrade and Disposal Project.

Community Development Director Caldwell reported on recent activities in the planning
department and stated the June 27" regular meeting of the Planning Commission was cancelled
due to the lack of a quorum and as a result, the Teasley Minor Subdivision matter was continued



JULY 3, 2012 MINUTES
Page 7

to the next meeting on July 25™ along with a proposed Lot Line Adjustment at 541 Wildwood
Ave., Parkland Dedication Fees, and the Parking Ordinance.

Councilmember Marks asked if the Downtown Design project was time sensitive; City Manager
Stretch stated that it is in that the project needs to get underway before the rainy season.

Community Development Director Caldwell commented that he was trying to get a cost
breakdown per median to see where costs could be cut and said Miller Farms Nursery called
today and he directed them to the engineer.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 8:00 p.m. to the July 10,
2012 special meeting. .

Julie Woodall, Mayor
Attest:

Karen Dunham, City Clerk



CITY OF

. imok
675 Wildwood Avenue
Rio Dell, CA 95562 DELL

(707) 764-3532

CALIFORNA
January 6, 2010
TO: Honorable Rio Dell Mayor and City Council
FROM: Jim Stre Manager
DATE: July 17, 2012
SUBJECT: Janitorial Services Agreement with North Coast Cleaning Services

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL:

Approve the attached agreement with North Coast Cleaning Services, Inc. for janitorial services
at City Hall, effective August 1, 2012.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

Since 1993 the City has had a contractual arrangement with North Coast Cleaning Services, Inc
for janitorial services at City Hall. The present cleaning schedule provides for services
once/week for 2 hours, and the annual cleaning of windows and striping and waxing the floors.
The building requires more than 2 hours/week to dust and keep it clean. Accordingly, the City
Council was requested and did approve in the 2012-2013 budget monies for the additional
hour/week.

Since the old agreement is rather informal, a new agreement is before the City Council for
approval, effective August 1, 2012,

The agreement has been approved as to legal form by the City Attorney.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The cost for services under the agreement is $471/month and included in the budget.

It is recommended that the City Council approve the new agreement, effective August 1, 2012.



MAINTENANCE SERVICE AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT entered into on 7/11/12 between City of Rio Dell. whose address is 675 Wildwood Bivd,
Rio Dell, CA. 95562 hereinafter referred to as "Company", and North Coast Cleaning Services, Inc. whose
address is P.O. Box 177, Eureka, CA. 95502 hereinafter referred to as "Contractor”, for services to be provided at
675 Wildwood Blvd, Rio Dell, CA. 95562. Contractor shall, in accordance with the conditions and specifications
set forth in this Agreement, furnish to Company building maintenance, supplies and services as specified in the
attached Detailed Contract Work Schedule which is made a part hereof and by reference incorporated herein, for a
period of twelve (12) months beginning August Ist, 2012 in consideration of the above, Company agrees to pay to
Contractor $471.00 per month for services as outlined in the attached Detailed Contract Work Schedule, together
with any other costs incurred for additional services as specified in the Cost Schedule hereto attached and by
reference incorporated herein. Said sum shall be due and payable by the tenth day of each month, beginning
September 1, 2012 and on the tenth day of each month thereafter.

IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED:

1. All work shall be performed by Contractor in a good and workmanlike manner. and Contractor shall provide regular
inspections by the Contractor's supervisory personnel of all premises on which services are provided.

2. Company shall have no right to direct or instruct persons employed or hired by Contractor in the performance of services
herein enumerated.

3. All supplies, equipment and property brought on to the premises by Contractor shall remain the property of Contractor and
shall not be subject to any lien or encumbrance resulting from any action of or against Company. Contractor may remove
such property during Company's normal business hours at Contractor's convenience.

4. Contractor shall carry worker's compensation insurance as required by state statute. Contractor shall carry liability
insurance for personal and property damage in the amount specified in the Certificate of Insurance specimen hereto attached
and by reference incorporated herein.

5. Company shall pay a service charge on any past due amounts, to be calculated at the rate of 18% per annum. Company shall
pay any costs, including reasonable attorney's fees to enforce the provisions of this Agreement.

6. Company agrees to indemnify and hold Contractor harmless from any personal and/or property damage claims in excess of
the amounts specified in the Certificate of Insurance hereto attached and by reference incorporated herein.

7. Either party shall have the privilege, with or without cause, to terminate this Agreement at any time upon 30 days written
notice to the other party as hereinafter specified.

8. In case of default by the Company of any of its agreements contained herein, Contractor shall have the ri ght, at its option, to
declare this contract null and void. Contractor may declare immediately due and payable all amounts due hereunder,
including monthly payments for services not yet rendered.

9. Inthe event that Contractor continues to provide services on this contract beyond the initial term of this agreement, it is
agreed that this contract will continue in effect until 30 days after written notice of termination is given by either party.

10. Notice to the parties, as herein required, shall be given in writing, by certified mail, at the above listed addresses.

1. Modifications to this agreement may be made by mutual consent of the parties, which consent must be in writing and signed
by both parties.

Company may, at its option, request Contractor to perform additional services beyond those listed on the attached Detailed

Contract Work Schedule and Cost Schedule. However, Company agrees that any additional work will be performed at a

price mutually agreed upon by the parties as of the time of performance. Such additional services shall be performed in

accordance with the terms of this agreement.

13. Company may not assign its right under this agreement without prior written consent of Contractor.

14. No services shall be performed by Contractor, its employees or subcontractors which, in Contractor's sole opinion, pose a
safety hazard.

15. During the course of this Agreement or the event of its termination for any cause, Company shall not solicit employment of
any employees or subcontractors of Contractor for a period of twelve months.

16. This agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California.

17. Contractor shall, to the fullest extent permitted by law, indemnify, defend and hold harmless Company from and against any
and all claims, damages, expenses, costs and liabilities, of every type and nature, including, without limitation. claims for
personal injury or property damage, arising out of or related to Contractor’s performance of the work under this Agreement,
or the performance by Contractor’s employees, agents, subcontractors and/or representatives.

COMPANY: CONTRACTOR:

Authonized Signature Authorized 1gnalu;/




CITY OF RIO DELL 675 Wildwood Ave.
CLEANING CHECKLIST
Clean on Monday, start by 3 PM.

( ) Empty trash cans, replace liners if necessary.

( ) Clean/sanitize and stock restrooms.

( ) Clean and stock break area and counter.

( ) Dust high to low all office areas.

( ) Wipe desks, phones, horizontal surfaces, tops of partitions.
( ) Spot doors and front door glass.

( ) Sweep front entry and knock down cobwebs around front
entry.

( ) Vacuum all carpets and floor mats.

( ) Dust mop floors.

( ) Mop floors.

( ) Return all cleaning products and equipment to janitors room.
( ) Turn off lights.

( ) Lock door.

Periodicals

Once per year- December

Scrub and buff all tile floors.
Clean all windows in/out.

Client provides all Paper products.
NCCS Inc. provides all cleaning supplies and trash bags.



CiTY OF

Rio Dell City hall RI O
675 Wildwood Avenue DE LL

Rio Dell, CA 95562 —_——
(707) 764-3532 CALIFORNA
riodellcity.com

July 17, 2012

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members

FROM: Jim Stretch, @anager

SUBJECT:  Report on disposal of surplus property (Truck)

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL:

Receive and file this report.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

In 2009 the City acquired a 1988 diesel International 2 Y2 ton stake truck from US Military
Surplus, at no cost, for use by the Rio Dell Police Department. The truck has had very little use
since then and recently received improvements in the amount of $1,000 to make it street legal.
The department has now determined that the vehicle is surplus for their use and after a survey it
has been determined that no other City department has need for it. It is surplus to our needs.

The Rio Dell Fire Protection District would like to purchase the truck for conversion to a water
tank platform. They have agreed to purchase it and reimburse the City for its cost--$1,000.

The Rio Dell Municipal Code Chapter 3.40 sets forth the policy on the disposal of surplus
property, authorizing the City Manager to surplus property if the market value is less than
$10,000. An internet search of similar vehicles for sale at various ages and specifications yielded
prices ranging from $3,995 to $9,900. However, nothing is quite like the military specification.

Though the City believes that the truck is in good condition and should be serviceable for the fire
district for many years, it is understood that the sale is basically ‘as is-where is” and there are no
warranties either expressed or implied.

The City Manager has determined that the vehicle is no longer needed by the City and that the
RDFPD is a public agency that can put it to good public use. Accordingly, the vehicle was
declared surplus and will be transferred when the proceeds are received



The Finance Department receives a copy of this report in order to make adjustments to the City
inventory/assets list and the City Clerk receives a copy and is responsible for the transfer of
ownership and title.

The City Code directs that the City Manager report such actions on the Council’s agenda for
receive and file.

Cc: Finance Director
City Clerk
Chief of Police

Attachments: California Vehicle Registration
The United State Government 2009 Certificate to Obtain Title to a Vehicle



SO S000 0000000 9T 9¢S 00O

SIS €9LWETT €€ 608T€E0 000

Y3IATOHNIIN
Z9556 \fo}
DLado TIad OId
: MDHD
T HSVYD ANON $
QAD3Y INNOWY NG INNOWY IAY dOOMdTIM GLO9
AHINS ILdad dDITod I18d OId
QIVd LNNOWY YINMO QFYIISION
LAWIXHE WIdd
S 60/8T/€0 A 60/8T/€0 THIDYIWNOD
J1d aAd3d 334 10 021v/22 QanssI 3iva SN I1THIA IdAL
STS6PSHL6UDATILHT 00%6T A € dd a WL
YIGWNN a1 JTOIH3A M92/9/NIAVINN M XV OW di 71300W 3dAL AQOY
€9LVEZT €€ ATE€ 6002 a0 0000 886T TINI
H3A 3dAL YAx SSv1) 474 a10S 1ST ¥A 7300W YA IivH

217 3dAL
660Z/T€/CT ‘0L 0000/00/00

T

YIAWAN 3SNE0I
TWodd dITYA QYYD NOILVALSIDHA



P

” The United States Government

Certificate to Obtain Title to a Vehicle
(Must Be Machine Prepared. See Instructions on reverse. ) U Duplicate If Checked

1‘\
The undersigned Department or Agency of the United States Government certifies that the vehicle
desEriEdherein, the préfiferty of the United States Government, has been transferred this day of 3

20 , to the Transferee designated herein; and that this is the first transfer of such

vehicle in ordinary trade and commerce subsequent to acquisition thereof by the United States
Government.

Vehicle Identification No. Certificate No.
IHTLLDCROJH549515 C199069 E
Year Make of Vehicle Series or Madel Body Style
1988 International Stake Truck
Fuel No. of Cylinders Weight (Shipping) GVWR Purchase Price
Diesel 8 19400 46000 0.00

Transferoriaccountable office, l.e., department or agency, subunit and address, 2P Code) | Transferee (Name of dealer, individual, etc. and address including ZIP Code)

Defense Utilization & Marketing Office
PO Box 110193
MCLB Barstow, CA. 92311-5037

Rio Dell Police Departmeni- *
675 Wildwood Avenue
Rio Dell, CA. 95562

REQ.# HO9DEB183669576
DTID R5564482917009

. Date of Statement 3
Odometer Disclosure Statement "

|

Federal Law (and State law, if applicabie) requires that you state the mileage upon transfer of ownership; fallure
to complete or providing a false statement may result in fines and/or imprisonment.

1 Debra A Baken

state that

Transteror’s Name (Seller)

the odometer now reads 39956
Odometer Reading (No Tenths)

best of my knowledge that it reflects the actual mileage of the vehicle described above, uniess one of the following
statements is checked.

miles and to the

D (1) 1 hereby certity that to the best of my knowiedge the odometer reading reflects the
amount of mileage in excess of its mechanical limits.

(2) 1 hereby certify that the odometer reading Is not the actual miieage:
WARNING - ODOMETER DISCREPANCY.

Transferor’'s Signature (Seller) Printed Name (Not Typed) and Title Date
D R N
X e TR el NG Letdes
Transferee's Signature (Buyer) Printed Name (Not Typed) and Title Date
X
199685 -
A ANY ALTERATION OR ERASURE Prescrioec oy GSA SPMR v CRR) 10145 2003

37-109

VOIDS TH'S CERT|F|CATE Pravious Editicr Mei Useatle NSN 7540-0C-634-4047

15 CERTIEICATE



CiTY OF

675 Wildwood Avenue R_

Rio Dell, CA 95562 10

(707) 764-3532 DE LI
CALIFOaNA

To: Honorable City Council

Through: Jim Stretch, City Manager

From: Karen Dunham, City Clerk and Carla Ralston, Public Works Admin.
Date: June 19, 2012

Subject:  Lease of New Copy Machine

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL:

Approve either the 36 or 48 month lease for a new Xerox 7545 Copy Machine from Docu Station,
conditioned on the City Attorney’s approval of the agreement as to legal form.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

Our current copy machine’s lease agreement ends September 5, 2012. It increasingly needs servicing due
to its age and the heavy volume of copying. This combined with the fact that we are exceeding our
monthly maintenance agreement, due to the volume of copies allowed and the slow speed in which it
copies, makes apparent that we need to replace the unit.

Staff obtained quotes for four different comparable machines, and after careful consideration of many
factors such as copier speed, functions, vendor maintenance response time, and special incentives, we
think the 7545 Xerox Color Copier from Docu Station best fits the City’s needs, and fits within the City’s
budget.

Outlined below are some of the factors that placed the Xerox from Docu Station above the other venders.
Docu Station charges a $20.00 monthly maintenance fee and bills only for the actual number of copies
made per month. The quoted maintenance fees from the other vendors were based on last year’s usage
and the city would be bound to that fee even if we went under the number of copies it included, but we
would be billed additionally for any overages. In addition, Xerox has single click pricing, which means
each copy is considered one click regardless of the size of the copy vs. the other vendors whom charge
two clicks per 11x17 and 8 2 x 14 copies. Last, it is the City’s responsibility to package and ship our
current copier back to the leasing company at an estimated cost of $500.00. Xerox has offered to pay the
fee and facilitate the return as well.

Recently, staff had an opportunity to use a loaner Xerox 7545 copier for a week and immediately noticed
the increased output speed from our current copier of 35 pages per minute black and white and 10 pages
per minute color to 45 pages per minute black and white and 45 pages per minute color. This alone
decreased staff time in making council packets by 2/3’s. Additionally, the color copies were vibrant and
clear. Lastly, as we already have a Xerox copier, so upgrading to a newer Xerox will be an easier
transition for staff in terms of learning all of its features and functions.



BUDGETARY IMPACT

This is an existing budgeted item paid from the General Government Budget spread.
(00,020,024,050,060) Lease of the new copier will increase the monthly lease payment by only $17,85.
charge. The current lease and monthly base maintenance fee for the existing copier is $364.81. With the
selection of a 48 month lease agreement on the Xerox, the total monthly fee would be $382.66. We are
presently awaiting cost information from the vendor for a 35 month lease.

ATTACHMENTS
®  Quote from Docu- Station Xerox Copiers
e Quote from Ray Morgan Company —------- Cannon Copiers
¢ Quote from Coastal Business Systems —--- Sharp Copiers
e Quote from Coastal Business Systems ------ Konika-Minolta Copiers



I N A I O O S T I T W T .

Xerox @)

City of Rio Dell
Date: Tuesday, March 20, 2012

Docu

YOUR DOCUMENT SPECIALISTS

There Is A Difference... And Xerox Proves It.

48 Month:FMV
Lease

WorkCentre 7545
Base Monthly Lease Payment: $362.66
Monthly Maintenance Plan Cost: $20.00
Black Impression Cost for Service and $0.0129 per
Supplies: impression
Color Impression Cost for Service and $0.0990 per
Supplies: impression
Former Lease Buyout: $3,586.82

* ‘Includes all parts, service, and all consumables except paper and staples.
¢ Tofal Satisfaction Guarantee—for three years
» Includes standard delivery.
» Delivery, training and Network setup included..
o Product: WorkGentre 7545
e 45 pages per minute black and white and color copier/printer/scanner
e LX Finisher
e  HiCapacity Tandem Trays
e Optional: 3-hole hole punch, Booklet Maker
e Fax with LAN Fax
e Scan to Email
I 1 F NG \ R CCCN LY

Contact your Account Manager:
Syman Scarpellino
707.362.8015
syman@docustation.net

The conlenls of this proposal are considered to be Xerox private data and are provided for Ihe exclusive use for you The cantents
herein may not be reproduced without the specific written permission of Xerox Corporalion. This proposal is for informalional
purposes only and does not constilute a contracl or an offer lo contract. Should you find this proposal of interes, we would be
pleased lo submit contract ferms.

Pricing valid for 30 days. Taxes may apply.
©2005 Xerox Corporation. ALL RIGHTS RESEAVED.

X E ROX Authorized

Dealer




Canon
% Ray Morgan company FACTORY AUTHORIZED

Proposed Solution (45 ppm)

Canon imageRUNNER Advance c5045

Lease Payment (60 months): $270.19/month
Lease Payment (48 months): $321.10/month
Lease Payment (36 months): $390.67/month
Maintenance

Maintenance includes:
= All toner
% All parts and labor
% All supplies (less paper and staples)
% Unlimited emergency service calls
% Annual preventative maintenance

Maintenance Costs
Color images billed @ $.074 per image
Black images billed @ $.0105 per image

Based on current average monthly volumes, monthly maintenance cost would be:

$232.00 per month
Includes 8,000 black and 2,000 color images

55C300th G Straet, Suite 11, Arcata, CA 35521 | 707 £01 8273 ph www.raymorgan.com



PN COASTAL sraches
>
g5 3 BUSINESS Cic

&y ] SYSTEMS Redding

—
2
- =

City of Rio Dell
May 8, 2012

System Includes:

Sharp MX- 4110N - 41 ppm Full Color Printer/Copier/Fax/Scanner
PS, PCL & XPS Controller

3 GB Standard Memory

160 GB HDD

Paperless Faxing

Scan-to-USB/Print-from-USB

Scan-To-Folder, Scan-To-Email, Scan-To-Hard Drive, Scan-To-FTP
Automatic Duplex Unit

100-Sheet Reversing Automatic Document Feeder, scanning up to 50 opm
Four Drawers Holding 2,000 Sheets (up to 110lb. index)
100-Sheet Multi-purpose Bypass Tray (up to 140 Ib. Index stock)
Set- Up, Delivery, and Training

Network Installation (A $295.00 Value)

90-Day All Parts & Labor Warranty

Coastal Business Systems, Inc. offers very competitive Lease rates and local service. Additional leasing
options are available upon request.

Lease/Purchase Option: 60 Months 90-Day Deferred, 60 Months
MV 3GAG UGN ¢ 255.35 mo. + tax * $262.97 mo. + tax *
Inner Finisher $ 30.27 mo. + tax $ 3117mo, +tax
External Finisher $ 54.05mo. + tax $ 55.66 mo. + tax
Estimated Xerox Buy-Out $ 30.15 mo. +tax $ 31.05mo. + tax

No Security Deposit is required. A purchase optionis available at lease-end, or the equipment may be
returned to the leasing company. A one-time documentation fee is applicable.

City of Rio Dell Maintenance Agreement:

A Maintenance Agreement covering all parts, labor, service calls and supplies** (excludes paper & staples)is
based on 6,195 pages per month for black & white @ $.011 per page and 2,907 pages per month for color @
$.079 per page; a total of $297.79 per month. Should City of Rio Dell opt to upgrade now or for the 90-Day
Deferred payment, Coastal Business Systems will remove and store the current Xerox machine, at NO
CHARGE until September 1, 2012 when It will be shipped back to Marlin Leasing. City of Rio Dell will be
responsible for return shipping costs of the Xerox machine to the leasing company.
**Toner cartridges are recyclable.
**Pricing Valid While Supply Lasts**
336 First Street o Eureka, California 95501 @ P: (707) 445-3095 o F: (707) 445-8743



COASTAL
BUSINESS Branches

=3 Chico
—=
=
-

= J'} SYSTEMS Redding
=

- % imagine the Possibilities.
J"J
City of Rio Dell

May 8, 2012

System Includes:

Konica-Minolta Bizhub (452 - 45 ppm Full Color Printer/Copier/Fax/Scanner
PS, PCL & XPS Controller

2 GB Standard Memory

250 GB HDD

Paperless Faxing

Scan-to-USB/Print-from-USB

Scan-To-Folder, Scan-To-Email, Scan-To-Hard Drive, Scan-To-FTP
Automatic Duplex Unit

100-Sheet Reversing Automatic Document Feeder, scanning up to 78 opm
Three Drawers Holding 3,500 Sheets (up to 24lb. Bond)

150-Sheet Multi-purpose Bypass Tray (up to 100 Ib. cover stock)

Set- Up, Delivery, and Training

Network Installation (A $295.00 Value)

90-Day All Parts & Labor Warranty

Coastal Business Systems, Inc. offers very competitive Lease rates and local service. Additional leasing
options are available upon request.

Lease/Purchase Option: 60 Months 90-Day Deferred, 60 Months
FMV $ 314.02 mo. + tax $323.40 mo. + tax
External Finisher $ 30.55 mo. + tax $ 31.46 mo. +tax
Estimated Xerox Buy-Out $ 30.15 mo. + tax $ 31.05 mo. + tax

No Security Deposit is required. A purchase option is available at lease-end, or the equipment may be
returned to the leasing company. A one-time documentation fee is applicable.

City of Rio Dell Maintenance Agreement:

A Maintenance Agreement covering all parts, labor, service calls and supplies** (excludes paper & staples) is
based on 6,195 pages per month for black & white @ $.0099 per page and 2,907 pages per month for color
@ $.075 per page; a total of $279.35 per month. Should City of Rio Dell opt to upgrade now or for the go-
Day Deferred payment, Coastal Business Systems will remove and store the current Xerox machine, at NO
CHARGE until September 1, 2012 when it will be shipped back to Marlin Leasing. City of Rio Dell will be
responsible for return shipping costs of the Xerox machine to the leasing company.

**Toner cartridges are recyclable.

**Pricing Valid for 30 Days**

336 First Street o Eureka, California 95501 e P: (707) 445-3095 e F: (707) 445-8743



CiTYy OF

675 Wildwood Avenue m O
Rio Dell, CA 95562 DE LL

(707) 764-3532 —m
CALIFORNIA

CITY OF RIO DELL

STAFF REPORT
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
July 17, 2012

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council

THROUGH: Jim Stretch, City Mana%
FROM: Stephanie Beauchaine, Finance Director
DATE: July 12, 2012

SUBJECT: Billable Rates

RECOMMENDATIONS
Approve Resolution 1162 -2012 Approving the Billable Rate for staff time for the fiscal year
2012-2013and Rescinding Resolution 1120-2011.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

From time to time the City is involved in various activities and projects that require cost recovery
for staff time spent on behalf of a customer. In these circumstances the City prepares an invoice
detailing all direct and indirect costs incurred by the City. Often times the primary charge is for
staff time, which requires the City to develop a rate that includes the cost of the employee’s
salary, benefits, supplies, and overhead which is what we call the “billable rate”.

We have developed the billable rate for each employee for the fiscal year of 2012-2013by
utilizing the following formula: Hourly Rate + City Average Benefit Cost+ Indirect Expenses=
Billable Rate.

The hourly rate is set by various employee contract agreements, and the average cost of benefits
was figured by dividing the total cost of City benefits by total employee labor hours. Indirect
expenses for each department have been determined by subtracting all departmental labor costs
from the total departmental budget and dividing the remaining indirect expenses by the total
department’s labor hours.

The result of the formula is a billable rate that allows the City to recover all costs associated with
staff time. This formula has been reviewed and approved by City Management.



Attachment: Billable Rates



RESOLUTION NO. 1162-2012
CITY OF RIO DELL
APPROVING THE BILLABLE RATE FOR STAFF TIME
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2012-2013

AND RESCINDING RESOLUTION 1120-2011

WHEREAS, the California Constitution Article XI, 7 grants Cities the authority to
enforce all local ordinances and regulations not in conflict with general laws; and

WHEREAS, the City has further authority to charge regulatory fees to cover the cost of
regulatory programs, and user fees to limited to the cost of providing service, and

WHEREAS, the City from time to time must recover the cost of labor and operating

expenses; and

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Rio Dell City Council does
hereby adopt the following billable rates for staff time to ensure cost recovery on various

projects as follows:

City Clerk 27.36
City Manager 50.23
Accountant il 23.93
Finance Director 3341
Fiscal Assistant | 14.13
Fiscal Assistant Il 16.851
Chief of Police 39.39
Police Officer 21.97
Police Officer 21.97
Palice Officer 20.65
Police Sergeant 27.13
Administrative Technician 18.509
Utility Lead 18.64
Utility Worker 13.81
Utility Worker 13.35
Utility Worker 13.35
Wastewater Operator 25.37
Water Operator 28.54

Community Development Director 35.29

48%
48%
48%
48%
48%
48%
48%
48%
48%
48%
48%
48%
48%
48%
48%
48%
48%
48%
48%

18.38
18.38
15.02
15.02
15.02
15.02
12.38
12.38
12.38
12.38
12.38
34.18
34.18
34.18
34.18
34.18
34.18
34.18
14.84

59.00
93.00
50.50
64.50
36.00
40.00
71.00
45.00
45.00
43.00
53.00
62.00
62.00
55.00
54.00
54.00
72.00
76.00
67.00

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City of Rio Dell on this 17th day of July, 2012.
Prepared by: Stephanie Beauchaine, Finance Director

Resolution No. 1162 Billable Rates for Fiscal Year 2012-2013

Page 1 of 2



Ayes:

Noes: None
Abstain: None
Absent: None
Julie Woodall, Mayor
ATTEST:

Karen Dunham, City Clerk

Prepared by: Stephanie Beauchaine, Finance Director Page 1 of 2

Resolution No. 1162 Billable Rates for Fiscal Year 2012-2013



CITY OF

675 Wildwood Avenue ﬁl{la(%
Rio Dell, CA 95562 b
(707) 764-3532 DeLL

——
CALFORNA

For Meeting of: July 17,2012

To: City Council

From: Kevin Caldwell, Community Development Director Ce
Through: Jim @, City Manager

Date: July 13, 2012

Subject: Parcel Merger's Authorized Representative

Recommendation:

That the City Council:

1. Receive staff's report regarding designating the City Manager and/or the Community
Development Director as an authorized representative to process and approve parcel
merger;

2. Designate the City Manager and/or the Community Development Director as an

authorized representative in the review and approval of parcel mergers.

Summary

It was recently brought to staff's attention that the Parcel Merger provisions of the City’s
Subdivision Ordinance refer to the City Engineer or authorized representative. In order to
expedite and streamline potential parcel mergers, staff is recommending that the City Council
designate the City manager and/or the Community Development Director as “authorized
representatives”.

Attachment:

1. Parcel merger Provisions, Chapter 16.45 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC).

Parcel Merger Authorized Representative July 17, 2012



Rio Dell Municipal Code
Chapter 16.45
PARCEL MERGERS

Sections:

16.45.010 Mergers not required.
16.45.020 Mergers required.
16.45.030 Notice of merger.
16.45.040 Request by property owner.

16.45.010 Mergers not required.

Two or more contiguous parcels or units of land which have been subdivided under the
provisions of applicable City ordinances or the State Subdivision Map Act shall not merge by
virtue of the fact that such further proceedings under this title shall be required for the purpose
of sale, lease or financing, except as provided by this chapter. [Ord. 176 § 1, 1983; Ord. 165
§ 1,1982; Ord. 60 § 1.1301, 1968.]

16.45.020 Mergers required.

If any one of two or more contiguous parcels or units held by the same owner does not conform
to existing zoning regulations so as not to permit its development, and at least one parcel or unit
has not been developed with a building for which a building permit is required, then such parcels
shall be considered as merged for the purpose of this title. [Ord. 176 § 1, 1983; Ord. 165 § 1,
1982; Ord. 60 § 1.1302, 1968.]

16.45.030 Notice of merger.

Whenever the City Engineer or an authorized representative has knowledge that real property
has merged pursuant to this chapter, they shall cause to be filed with the County Recorder a
notice of merger. At least 30 days prior to recording of notice, the owner of the parcels or units
shall be advised in writing of the intention to record such notice.

The notification to the owner shall specify a time, date and place at which the owner may
present evidence as to why the notice of merger should not be recorded.

The notice of merger to be recorded shall specify the names of the record owners and
describing the property to be merged. [Ord. 176 § 1, 1983; Ord. 165 § 1, 1982; Ord. 60

§ 1.1303, 1968.]

16.45.040 Request by property owner.

Upon request of the legal owner of contiguous parcels, the City Engineer or authorized
representative may approve the merger of the property. Such request shall be in writing and
shall be accompanied by such data and documents as required by the City Engineer’s office.
Upon approval, a notice of merger shall be filed with the County Recorder. The form and
content of the notice shall be as required by the City Engineer.

In approving such merger, the City may impose reasonable conditions. The reasonableness of
such conditions may be appealed within 15 days of written notice of the conditions to the City
Council in accordance with RDMC 16.10.090(1).

A fee to be charged at actual cost shall be charged to the applicant for processing such merger.

A deposit may be required to be applied toward this fee. [Ord. 176 § 1, 1983; Ord. 165 § 1,
1982; Ord. 60 § 1.1304, 1968.]



CiTY OF

675 Wildwood Avenue RI o
Rio Dell, CA 95562 DE LL

(707) 764-3532 —m
CALIFORNIA
CITY OF RIO DELL
STAFF REPORT
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
July 17,2012

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council
THROUGH: Jim Stretch, anager
FROM: Stephanie Beauchaine, Finance Director g&
DATE: July 12,2012

SUBJECT: Revised Laco Scope of Services

RECOMMENDATIONS
Approve Revised Scope of Services for LACO Associates testing on the Wastewater Facility and
Effluent Disposal Project and direct the City Manager to execute the contract.

BUDGETARY IMPACT
The additional costs totaling $24,312.30 will be funded by the State Water Resources Control
Board Loan.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

The City Council approved a scope of services with LACO Associates to provide testing services
on the Wastewater Facility and Effluent Disposal project. The original proposal submitted by
LACO totaled $41,030 and was based on an estimated construction schedule prior to the
commencement of construction.

LACO has received the contractor’s actual construction schedule and revised their scope of
services to reflect the actual amount of work required for testing activities proposed at this time.
The revised scope of services totals $65,342.30 and has been reviewed and approved by the
Project Engineer and Construction Manager.

The current construction schedule is the basis for the current testing scope. In the event the
construction activities change it may be necessary to revise the LACO contract again. Details of
the additional services required are outlined in the attached scope of services. All proposed
testing activities are necessary for the completion of the project.



Attachment: LACO Associates Revised Scope of Services



SCOPE OF SERVICES

LACO Associates is pleased to submit this revised scope and fee estimate for specialty testing and
inspection services. Based upon our review of the Project Plans and Specifications and the current
Construction Schedule, services provided will generally consist of geotechnical soil subgrade inspections,
sol and concrete laboratory testing, soil compaction testing, field concrete sampling and testing, structural
steel bolting and welding, and asphalt inspection on an as needed basis. The general Scope of Services will
be provided on a time and materials basis. The actual cost of services will be determined by the contractor's
construction schedule and construction techniques.

Lalieraiaty and Figld Testing Suinmary

»

Lab testing of Soil Backfill Materials ~ After communication with the Contractor we have
anticipated the utilization of both native materials and imported material and have budgeted an
increase for maximum density curves for up to six structural backfill soil types. We have assumed
that the contractor's submittals will include 1ab tests verifying suitability of proposed materials.
Original estimated fee of $810

Current Services Rendered YTD $150

Revised Remaining Fee Estimate $1220

Compaction Testing of Force Main Bore Pits - We have a revised assumption of 35 site visits
averaging three hours each to perform testing at two different elevations during backfill at a
majority of the bore pits. Our original estimate was based upon testing trench backfill. There is a
potential for a reduction in the number of site visits based upon Contractor performance and
Contractor's QC testing results. Each site visit is inclusive of portal to portal labor, vehicle charge,

and equipment rental. We have anticipated site work will be completed on an intermittent basis
over the course of the project.

Original Estimated fee of $9,970
Revised Fee Estimate $14,710

Compaction Testing of Biotank Slab Backfill - We originally assumed two site visits, averaging
four hours each. There will be an additional site visit for testing backfil south of the Biotank

expansion joint. Each site visit is inclusive of portal to portal labor, vehicle charge, and equipment
rental.

Original Estimated fee of $980
Current Services Rendered YTD $544.50
Revised Remaining Fee Estimate $420

Compaction Testing of Existing Building Slab Infill - We have assumed two site visits, of eight
hours each. Each site visit is inclusive of portal to portal labor, vehicle charge, and equipment

rental. We have anticipated site work will be completed intermittently over the course of the project.
Estimated fee of $1,900

Concrete Cylinder Lab Testing for Compressive Strength - We originally assumed 33 sets of
concrete cylinders would be required to meet the project requirement of one set per 50 yards of
structural concrete or fraction thereof. Our revised estimate is based upon the Contractors
construction schedule and assumes 58 sets of sample cylinders with 14 sets cast to date. This
estimate has the potential to be reduced by approximately 10 sets ($7877) if the Contractor bores
under the Eel River in lieu of placing the force main inside of the southbound Highway 101 Bridge.
Compressive strength testing of each set is inclusive of lab testing, engineer review of results, and
distribution of results to the owner, design team, and the contractor

Original Estimated fee of $6,195

Current Services Rendered YTD $966

Revised Remaining Fee Estimate $8260



Concrete Field Sampling and Testing of Biotank Slab - We originally assumed two site visits of
eight hours each for the biotank slab pours. Contractor sequencing of slab pours has increased the
estimated number of slab pours from two to five. We anticipate two more site visits of five hours
each to complete the slab. Each site visit is inclusive of portal to portal labor, vehicle charge, and
equipment rental. Sample pickup of concrete cylinders from each pour has been included.

Original Estimated fee of $1,775

Current Services Rendered YTD $2909

Revised Remaining Fee Estimate $1310

Concrete Field Sampling and Testing of Biotank Walls - We originally assumed eight site visits
averaging five hours each for the tank wall pours. Contractor sequencing of wall pours has
increased the estimated number of remaining wall pours to 17 averaging 5 1/2 hours each. Each
site visit is inclusive of portal to portal labor, vehicle charge, and equipment rental. Sample pickup
of concrete cylinders from each pour has been included.

QOriginal Estimated fee of $4,795

Current Services Rendered YTD $663

Revised Remaining Fee Estimate $11,275

Concrete Field Sampling and Testing of Bridge Pipe Pedestals — The Contractor is currently in
the process of obtaining a permit to bore undemeath the Eel River for placement of the force main.
If the permit is obtained sampling and testing of concrete will not be necessary and will result in a
unknown fee for testing of bore pit backfill instead. If the Contractor is required to install the force
main as originally designed we anticipate ten site visits averaging three hours each for the bridge
pipe pedestal pours. Each site visit is inclusive of portal to portal labor, vehicle charge, and

equipment rental. Sample pickup of concrete cylinders from each pour has been included.
Estimated fee of $4,510

Concrete Field Sampling and Testing of Miscellaneous Structures - We anticipate three site
visits of averaging four hours each for miscellaneous structures. Each site visit is inclusive of portal
to portal labor, vehicle charge, and equipment rental. Sample pickup of concrete cylinders from
each pour has been included.

Estimated fee of §1,540

Grout Field Sampling of Existing Operations Building Wall Infill - We anticipate two site visits
of three hours for sampling of grout during masonry infill of existing operation building. Each site
visit is inclusive of portal to portal labor, vehicle charge, and equipment rental. Sample pickup of
grout samples from each pour has been included.

Estimated fee of $900

Structural Steel Bolting and Welding - We anticipate three site visits of averaging two hours
each, one for each canopy structure. Each site visit is inclusive of portal to portal labor, vehicle
charge, and equipment rental.

Estimated fee of $845

Asphalt Testing - We anticipate bore holes and trenches in the roadway will have aggregate base
backfilled on top and testing would have already been performed prior to the asphalt repair work
that may need sampling and or testing. We have allotted a small budget if needed. We have
assumed that the contractor will submit a mix design complete with lab results verifying mix meets
project requirements. We will provide two site visits of four hours each to monitor temperature of
mix and roller patterns. The project inspector may elect to perform these duties.

Estimated fee of §1,060



Geotechnical Subgrade Inspections — Subgrade inspections were not contained in our
original Cost Estimate but were performed for the City in a separate contract. Remaining
subgrade inspections have been added to this Scope in order to accurately reflect the
total cost of completing the requested testing and inspection tasks per Project Plans and
Specifications. The Biotank slab backfill south of the slab expansion joint under the
existing equipment ramp and due east of the ramp where backfill material was stockpiled
during backfilling operations has been used as a staging area during construction and will
require additional subgrade inspections after removal of the equipment ramp and
construction supplies. We anticipate two site visits of two hours each including
documentation of existing site conditions. Each site visit is inclusive of portal to portal
labor, vehicle charge, equipment rental, and documentation of site conditions.

Current Services Rendered YTD §1573.75

Estimated Fee fo complete Subgrade Inspection of 3840

Engineering Oversight, Administrative Processing, Project Management, and Team
Meetings/Communications — Due to the increased number of testing and sampling events based
upon the Contractor's current construction schedule this budget item will need to be increased
accordingly. We will be in communication with the construction manager, geotechnical engineer,
resident engineer, and city staff as needed and requested during the project to ensure quality
assurance requirements are met. We understand there will be team meetings at critical junctures of
the project and we wish to participate in those meetings. Other project management tasks include
certified payroll compliance, invoicing, budget monitoring, status reporting, resource scheduling,
and internal LACO quality review procedures.

Original Estimated fee of §6,095

Current Services Rendered YTD $2036.05

Revised Fee Estimate $7725

Original estimated fee to provide the materials testing services listed in the Summary was: $41,030

Cost of services rendered year to date are: $8,842.30

Revised estimated fee to provide the remaining materials testing services listed in the Summary is: $56,500
Total of services rendered year to date and revised estimated fee to provide the remaining materials testing
services listed in the Summery is: $65,342.30

This revised estimate is intended as a replacement for the original estimate contained on pages 6
through 8 of Laco Associates proposal dated March 30, 2011.

Assumptions

»

The actual sequencing of work by the contractor has the potential to significantly change the final
cost of the services LACO will provide for this project. Costs could be reduced or increased
depending on contractor performance.

Each site visit represents a typical site visit, portal to portal, inclusive of labor, vehicle charges, and
equipment charges.

LACO will rely on the project inspector and resident engineer to coordinate the total number of site
visits needed to meet the quality assurance and testing requirements of the project.

LACO assumes submittals for imported backfill will include the proper documentation certifying that
the materials meet the project requirements.

Material testing performed by LACO in no way relieves the Contractor of their obligation to perform
the work in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents.

Prevailing wage rates for onsite time for LACO staff has been assumed. We will submit weekly
certified payroll to the designated compliance person.

LACO requests that the Contractor or Owner's representative assist in providing safe access
during onsite visits to facilitate required field testing and sampling.



+  Access to contract documents including project plans, specifications and any changes to the
documents during construction, erosion and sediment control requirements, environmental
protection measures, and other pertinent construction documents, will be provided by City.



REVISED ESTIMATED COST OF T & | SERVICES FOR RIO DELL WASTEWATER FACILITY

ITEM DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES INDIVIDUAL SERVICES UNITS RATE cosT

2 Testing Technician (1 hr mob & Iravel) 1.00 74.00 574.00
Concrete Tesling or Observation (LABOR)  [PW Testing Technician (4 hrs onsite) 4.00 85.00 $340.00
Sample Pickup 1.00 100.00 $100.00
Biotank slab Vehicle Charge (daily) 1.00 65.00 §65.00
2 pours remaining at south end of tank Engineer Review (hourly) 0.25 125.00 $31.25
“IProject Management & Reporting(hourly) 0.50 86.00 $43.00
Subtotal per site visit $653.25

Labor total for]  2.00 4 hour site visits $1,306.50
Testing Technician (1 hr mob & lravel) 1.00 74.00 $74.00
Concrete Testing or Observation (LABOR)  |PW Testing Technician (4.5 hrs onsite) 450 85.00 $382.50
Sample Pickup 1.00 100.00 $100.00
Biotank walls Vehicle Charge (daily) 0.50 65.00 §32.50
17 pours remaining per contraclor's sched.  |Engineer Review (hourly) 0.25 125.00 $3125
Project Management & Reparting{hourly) 0.50 86.00 $43.00
Subtotal per site visit $663.25

Labor total for| 17.00 {5.5 hour site visits $11,275.25
Testing Technician (1 hr mob & travel) 1.00 74.00 $74.00
Concrete Testing or Observation (LABOR)  {PW Testing Technician (2 hrs onsite) 2.00 85.00 $170.00
Sample Pickup 1.00 100.00 $100.00
Bridge pedestals Vehicle Charge (daily) 0.50 65.00 $32.50
Engineer Review (hourly) 0.25 125.00 $31.25
Project Management & Reporting(hourly) 0.50 86.00 $43.00
Subtotal per site visit $450.75

Labor total for{ 10.00 |3 hour site visits $4,507.50
Testing Technician (1 hr mob & travel) 1.00 74.00 $74 00
Concrete Testing or Observation (LABOR)  [PW Testing Technician (3 hrs onsite) 3.00 8500 $255.00
Sample Pickup 1.00 100.00 $100.00
Misc structures Vehicle Charge (daily) 0.50 65.00 $32.50
Engineer Review (hourly) 0.25 125.00 $31.25
Project Management & Reporting(hourly) 0.25 8600 $21.50
Subtotal per site visit $514.25

Labor total for] 3.00 |4 hour site visits $1,542,75
Testing Technician (1 hr mab & travel) 1.00 74.00 $74.00
Grout Testing or Observation (LABOR) PW Testing Technician (2 hrs onsite) 2.00 85.00 $170.00
Sample Pickup 1.00 100.00 $100.00
Operation building wall infill Vehicle Charge (daily) 0.50 65.00 $32.50
Engineer Review (hourly) 0.25 125.00 $31.25
Project Management & Reporting(hourly) 0.50 86.00 $43.00
Subtotal per site visit $450.75

Labor total for| 2.00 |3 hour site visits $901.50

P 174007448 City of Rio Delh7448 00 Wastewater TRNO1 Proposal Decuments\7448 00 Tesling Cost Estimale 2012-06-26




REVISED ESTIMATED COST OF T & | SERVICES FOR RIO DELL WASTEWATER FACILITY

ITEM DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES INDIVIDUAL SERVICES UNITS RATE CcOosT

3 CWI Inspector (1 hr mob & travel) 1.00 74.00 $74.00
Welding Testing or Observation (field) CWI Inspector (1 hrs onsite) 1.00 98.00 $98 00
Testing Equipment 0.25 50.00 $12.50
Vehicle Charge (daily) 0.50 65.00 $32.50
1 site visit per canopy Engineer Review (hourly) 125.00 $0.00
Administrative (hourly) 60.00 $0.00
Project Management & Reporting(hourly) 0.75 86.00 $64.50
Subtotal per site visit $281.50

Lab total for| 3.00 |2 hour site visits $844.50
4 Testing Technician (1 hr mob & travel) 1.00 74.00 §74.00
Asphalt Tesling or Observation (LABOR)  |PW Testing Technician (3 hrs onsite) 3.00 91.00 $273.00
Nuke Gauge (daily) 0.50 85.00 $42.50
Patchwork if needed Vehicle Charge (daily) 1.00 65.00 $65.00
Engineer Review (hourly) 0.25 125.00 $31.25
Project Management (hourly) 0.50 86.00 $43.00
Subtotal per site visit $528.75

Labor total for| 2.00 [4 hour site visits $1,057.50
5 Clerical (hourly) 0.25 60.00 $15.00
Project Management & Administrative Engineer Review (hourly) 0.25 125.00 $31.25
Project Management & Reporting(hourly) 0.25 86.00 $21.50
Subtotal $67.75

Project total for| 114.00 |days of testing activity $7,723.50
6 Professional Geologist (1 hr mobe & travel) 1.00 115.00 $115.00
Geologist subgrade inspections Professional Geologist (1 hr onsite) 1.00 115.00 $115.00
Vehicle Charge (daily) 0.50 65.00 $32.50
Project Management & Reporting(hourly) 1.00 115.00 $115.00
Principal Oversite 0.25 165.00 $41.25
Subtotal per site visit $418.75

Labor total for] 2.00 |2 hour site visits $837.50

TOTAL $56,503.50

No Contingency
July 2, 2012 TOTAL with NO contingency $56,503.50

EACH SITE VISIT ESTIMATE REPRESENTS A TYPICAL 4-8 HOUR PORTAL TO PORTAL SITE VISIT INCLUSIVE OF LABOR, VEHICLE

CHARGES, AND EQUIPMENT CHARGES.

rate sheet.

NOTE: The final cost may be subject to change due to contraclor scheduling, construction technigues, weather delays, supplemental testing, number of
retests, etc. The wage rates may vary depending upon staff availability at the time of the request. Material testing and special inspections performed by
LACO in no way relieves the Cantraclor of their obligalion to perform work in accordance with the requiremenls of the Contract Documents. Services
beyond those listed abave will be preappraved by clienl prior to performing additional work. Equipmenl rental nol shown above will be billed per standard

per day shall be invoiced at 1.3 times lhe stated rate.

(1) The rale for each visit will be adjusted to reflect portal to portal time for the technician or inspector. Technician or inspector time in excess of 8 hours

P\7400\7448 City of Rw D2IN744B8 00 Wastewater T&I\01 Proposal Documents\7448 00 Testing Cosl Eslimate 2012-06-26




CITY OF

675 Wildwood Avenue RIO

Rio Dell, CA 95562 ELL

(707) 764-3532 —_—
CALFORNA

For Meeting of: July 17,2012

To: City Council

From: Kevin Caldwell, Community Development Directo@ '
Through: Jim Stretch, Ci@nager

Date: July 13, 2012

Subject: County General Plan Update

Recommendation:
That the City Council:

1. Receive staff's report regarding the County General Plan Update and recommended
Land Use designations adjacent to or near the City;

2. Direct staff to prepare a letter to the County for the Mayor’s signature identifying any
concerns or issues from the City.

Summary

The City Council recently received a presentation from John Miller of the County Community
Development Department regarding the General Plan Update and the recommended Land Use
designations for properties adjacent to or near the City. It was staff’s intent to discuss in greater
detail the recommended designations at the recent Joint Study Session of July 10, 2012. Due
to time constraints, the discussion was cut short.

The County is recommending that APN 205-031-047, currently designated Timberland (T) and
zoned Timberland Production Zone (TPZ) be redesignated Urban Reserve, Rural Residential 5
— 20 acre minimum. The parcel is currently owned by Green Diamond Resource Company and
is located above and adjacent to the Dinsmore Plateau. The Urban Reserve designation is
applied to lands that are expected to be annexed to a City. The parcel is not within the City’s
current Sphere of Influence. In addition, the Dinsmore Plateau area has access issues

County General Plan Update July 17, 2012



associated with the dead end road. Furthermore, under the current land use designations within
the City, the City could accommodate approximately 900 additional parcels. Based on this
information, it may be premature to designate the parcel as Urban Reserve.

The City may also want to consider requesting that the former Mozzetti parcel west of Highway
101, which will accommodate the City’s wastewater disposal field, be designated Public
Facility.

In addition, based on the recommended designations in the Monument Road and the Blue Slide
Road areas, it appears that the General Plan could facilitate additional development impacting
the City’s roads. Staff recommends that the City officially request that the County refer all
projects affecting Monument Road and Blue Slide Road to the City for review and identification
of appropriate mitigation measures.

Attachment:

1. Recommended County Land Use Designations adjacent or next to the City.

County General Plan Update July 17, 2012



Land Use Designations

AE, AEG, AEG180, AE20, AEE0
AG, AGR

T, T, TorM, TC

AL160, RR160

AL60, RRE60

AL40, RR40, RR40-160

AL20, RR20, RR20-160

AR

AR20-5, RR5-20, RR10, RR10-20

AS

RE1-5, RE2.5-5, RE2-5, RE, RS

RL, RLO-2, RL1-7, RL1-4, RL3-8, RL1-2, RL0-2, RLO-4
RM, RM7-16

CG, CR, CS

MU

IG, IR, CS/IG, MB, MC, MG

RCC, VC

CPA

P, 0S, PR, NR

PF

CF, CFR

Tribal Lands

UR, RLUR, RWUR, RR5-20UR, UR/RE2.5-5
Clty of Rio Dell Sphere of Influence

=
I
|
)
=
=3
[
=
En
=

B.J.VO HME=ST H




CiTY OF

RIO

Rio Dell City hall

675 Wildwood Avenie D E LL
Rio Dell, CA 95562 —_——
(707) 764-3532 CALFORNIA

riodellcity.com

July17, 2012

TO: Honorable City Council

FROM: Jim Stretch, City Manager

SUBIJECT: Voter petition results for November 6, 2012 election

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL:

1) Receive and file the certification from County Elections as to the number of valid signatures on
petitions submitted for the placement of a ballot proposition, similar to the June 5, 2012 Measure
X, on the November 6, 2012 general election ballot, as per Government Code section 43616, and

2) If County Elections certifies that at least 7 1signatures on the petition are valid, give staff direction
to proceed with placing the new street improvement GO bond measure proposition before the
voters on November 6, 2012.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

Government Code section 43616 provides as follows:

“43616. If any proposition is defeated by the electors, the legislative body shall not call another
election on a substantially similar proposition to be held within six months after the prior election. If a
petition requesting submission of such a proposition, signed by 15 percent of the city electors as shown
by the votes cast for all candidates for governor at the last election, is filed with the legislative bodys, it
may hold an election before the expiration of six months.”

On July 3, 2012, after receiving much encouragement from constituents, the Rio Dell City Council
directed staff to work with legal counsel to prepare a petition for circulation to City voters to qualify a
measure similar to Measure X on the November 6, 2912 ballot. As you know, the June 5, 2012 measure
concerned the construction of street improvements with GO bonds, financed by property assessments for
15 years, fell short 25 votes from reaching the 66.6666% threshold.

A number of petitions have been in circulation in the City. Those that are received by the City Clerk
through the morning of 7-17-12 are to be transported to the Humboldt County Election Office in Eureka
where they will be processed. The Election Office will then certify the number of valid signatures on the
petitions for submission to the City Council at the July 17, 2012 meeting.



675 Wildwood Avenue

Rio Dell, CA 95562 %E
(707) 764-3532 DeLL

For Meeting of: July 17,2012

To: City Council

From: Kevin Caldwell, Community Development Director @
Through: Jim Stretch, City Manager

Date: July 13, 2012, 2012

Subject: Albin General Plan Amendment and Zone Reclassification

2

At the request of the applicant, Andy Albin, the project was continued to your meeting of July 17",
Attached is the Albin staff report. Once again, in an attempt to save copy costs, staff did not include
some of previously provided attachments which were provided to your Council for the meeting of
May 15, 2012. If you need another copy of those attachments, please let staff know.



- - N CITY OF
675 Wildwood Avenue

3 RI ;
Rio Dell, CA 95562 %
(707) 764-3532 DeELL

—

CALECANA

For Meeting of: June 19, 2012
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

To: City Council

From: Kevin Caldwell, Community Development Director @
Through: Jim Stretch, City Mana

Date: June 13, 2012

Subject: Albin General Plan Amendment and Zone Reclassification

Attached is the Albin staff report. In an attempt to save copy costs, staff did not include some of
previously provided attachments which were provided to your Council for the meeting of May 15,
2012. If you need another copy of those attachments, please let staff know.

As you're aware the Council considered the Albin amendments at the meeting of May 15". Both
Council members Leonard and Marks were not able to attend the meeting. After public comment,
Council members, Wilson, Thompson and Mayor Woodall discussed and deliberated the application.
| believe the Council felt that the proposed amendments have both advantages and disadvantages.
Council member Wilson felt that it was in the City’s best financial interest to redesignate the property
Community Commercial to Urban Residential.

Following the discussion, Council member Wilson made a motion to approve the proposed General
Plan Amendment and Zone Reclassification. The Motion was seconded by Council member
Thompson and the Council voted 2-1 to approve the requested amendments. There was
subsequent discussion regarding the Council's action and whether a majority of the entire Council
was required in order to approve the proposed amendments. At that point the Council determined
that it would be in the best interest of the City to have the other Council members consider and vote
on the proposed amendments. As such, Council member Wilson made a motion to withdraw his

original motion and continue the item to the meeting of June 5. The motion was seconded and
passed 3-0.

Staff subsequently reviewed the Government Code regarding Plan Amendments and Zone
Reclassifications and determined that a majority of the total membership of the legislative body is
required in order to approve General Plan Amendments. Staff checked with legal counsel and it was
confirmed that a majority of the entire Council is required to approve General Plan Amendments.

Albin GPA/ZR Supplemental Information CC June 19, 2012



. Criry or

675 Wildwood Avenue

? R E
Rio Dell, CA 95562 %
(707) 764-3532 DeLL

To:

From:

—

CAarsoiaa

For Meeting of: May 15, 2012

CONTINUED TO JUNE 19, 2012
City Council

Kevin Caldwell, Community Development Director

Through: Ron Henrickson, City Manager

Date: April 30, 2012
Subject: Albin General Plan and Zone Reclassification
Recommendation:

That the City Council:

1.

Receive staff's report regarding the proposed General Plan and Zone Reclassification;
Open the public hearing, receive public input and deliberate;

Consider the application and based on information contained in the staff report, the
applicant’s justification, public comments, the Planning Commission’s recommendation;
(e

Introduce Ordinance No. 290-2012 and Resolution No. #+53-A-2012 amending the plan
and zoning designation of approximately 3 acres from Community Commercial (CC) to
Urban Residential (UR); and continue consideration of the proposed Ordinance and
Resolution to your meeting of July 3, 2012 for second reading and adoption; or

(>
Adopt Resolution No. ##53+B-2012 denying the proposed General Plan Amendment
and Zone Reclassification designating approximately 3 acres from Community
Commercial (CC) to Urban Residential (UR) .

Background and Discussion

Andy Albin has made application to redesignate approximately 3 acres from Community
Commercial (CC) to Urban Residential (UR). Included as Attachment 1 is the applicant’s
justification for the proposed amendments.

Albin General Plan Amendment & Zone Reclassification City Council June 19, 2012



The property was originally planned and zoned Residential Multiple Family (R-3) as part of the
City's initial zoning designations after incorporation in 1965. The R-3 zone principally permitted

single family, two family and dwelling groups and muitiple dwellings for not more than four
families.

The property was redesignated in 2004 to Community Commercial. At that time the parcel
included some lands to the east of the subject property which was and is designated Urban
Residential. In May of 2006, a minor subdivision creating four parcels and a Remainder (the
subject parcel) was approved. Sometime in 2008 or 2009 the applicant informally requested the
City consider redesignating the parcel from Community Commercial to Urban Residential. At
that time, the City chose not to consider amending the land use designations.

As indicated above, the applicant’s agent has submitted justification in support of making the

required Public Interest and General Plan consistency findings. Below is a summary of the
justification:

Public Interest

® Re-zoning to "Urban Residential" would make this parcel compatible with the
surrounding existing residential use;

® Residential development will not require modifications to the Gateway improvements
adjacent to the parcel;

® Redesignating the parcel to Residential will further encourage commercial development
to the Town Center and the Todd parcef;

® Residential development will not detract from the view of the Scotia bluffs and be easy to
landscape for privacy

General Plan

® The General Plan encourages commercial development in the Town Center. Consistent
with this policy, redesignating the parcel to Residential will further encourage commercial
development to the Town Center and the Todd parcel ;

® The General Plan encourages compatible development. Residential development would
be more compatible with the existing surrounding residential development.

The Planning Commission considered the application at their meeting of April 25, 2012. Based
on information provided to the Commission and comments from the public, the Planning

Commission is recommending denial of the proposed amendments at this time. The Planning
Commission denied the application for the following reasons:

® Limited amount of available, vacant, viable Community Commercial land;
® Parcel has very good visibility and convenient highway access;

Albin General Plan Amendment & Zone Reclassification City Council June 19, 2012



® Existing inventory of residentially designated lands.

Procedures for Plan Amendments

California Government Code § 65350-65362 contains the following procedural requirements to
amend a general plan:

Prior to action to amend a general plan, the proposed action should be referred to and
circulated for 45 days to: the City, County, school districts, LAFCo, regional planning
agencies, any federal or state agencies, water providers, and Native American tribes
with traditional lands located within the City;

The Planning Commission shall hold at least one public hearing before approving a
recommendation on the amendment;

The Planning Commission shall make a written recommendation on the amendment;

Prior to amending the general plan, the City Council shall hold at least one public
hearing;

The City Council shall amend the general plan by resolution, which shall be adopted by
not less than a majority of the legislative body;

City Council may approve, modify, or disapprove the Planning Commission
recommendations, however any substantial modifications not previously considered by

the Planning Commission shall first be referred to the Planning Commission for its
recommendation;

Copies of the adopted general plan amendment shall be made available for inspection
by the public one working day following adoption;

Within two working days after a request, copies shall be fumished to those so
requesting;

Any specific plan or other plan of the City that is applicable to the same areas or matters
affected by a general plan amendment shall be reviewed and amended as necessary to
make the specific or other plan consistent with the General Plan;

Procedures for Zoning Ordinance Amendments

Pursuant to Section 17.30.010 of the City of Rio Dell Municipal Code, the following City
procedures are required to amend the Ordinance:

An amendment may be initiated by one or more owners of property affected by the

proposed amendment, as set out in Section 17.30.010(3), or by action of the Planning
Commission, or the City Council.

The application of one or more property owners for the initiation of an amendment shall
be filed in the office of the City Clerk on a form provided, accompanied by a filing fee.

Subject only to the rules regarding the placing of matters on the Planning Commission
agenda, the matter shall be set for a public hearing.

Notice of hearing time and place shall be published once in a newspaper of general
circulation at least ten calendar days before the hearing or by posting in at least three
public places.

Albin General Plan Amendment & Zone Reclassification City Council June 19, 2012



At the public hearing, the Planning Commission shall hear any person affected by the
proposed amendment. The hearing may be continued from time to time.

Within 40 days of the conclusion of the hearing, the Planning Commission shall submit
to the City Council a written report of recommendations and reasons therefore.

Subject only to the rules regarding the placing of matters on its agenda, the City Council,
at its next regular meeting following the receipt of such report, shall cause the matter to
be set for a public hearing. Notice of the time and place of the hearing shall be given as
provided in Section 17.30.010(5), hereof.

At the public hearing, the City Council shall hear any person affected by the proposed

amendment. The hearing may be continued to a specified future date, but shall be
concluded within 60 days of the commencement thereof.

e The City Council shall not make any change in the proposed amendment until the

proposed change has been referred to the Planning Commission for a report, and the

Planning Commission report has been filed with the City Council.

Plan and Zone Amendment Required Findings:

1. The proposed amendments are deemed to be in the public interest.

The applicant’s agent has submitted justification for the proposed amendment which is included
as Attachment 1. In regards to the required Public Interest finding, the applicant provided the

information below as evidence that the proposed amendment is in the public interest:

“It is in the City's and public's interest to encourage commercial development in the

"Town Center" and to discourage a commercial "strip mall" development along Wildwood

Ave. Rio Dell is not a destination area which will attract the vacationing public to the
City. The "Town Center" area of the City stands to benefit from the attractions,

subdivision and industrial uses located in the town of Scotia. Residential use of this area

will not create the need for additional access onto Wildwood Ave. Residential use is
consistent and compatible with the existing residential neighborhood. *

In addition, the applicant’s agent provided the following information as part of the justification
included as Attachment 1:

“It was once believed that this parcel's proximity to US 101 would make it an ideal
commercial site for serving traffic on the highway. Now, the City has identified a more
appropriately located parcel along US 101.”

It should be noted that the above reference to the parcel along US 101 is the Todd parcel that
the City was pursuing for acquisition and development. However, this parcel was and is already

zoned Community Commercial.

Staff Analysis

In order to determine if the proposed amendment is in the public interest, staff believes we need

to evaluate the commercial and residential land use inventory for the City. Table 1 below
identifies the amount of commercial and residential land within the City.

Albin General Plan Amendment & Zone Reclassification City Council June 19, 2012



Table 1

Commercial/Residential Lands

Land Use/Zoning Designation Acres % of City

CC | Community Commercial 33 2.6%
NC | Neighborhood Commercial 6.0 0.5%
TC | Town Center 48 3.8%
UR | Urban Residential 323.6 25.3%
SL Suburban Low 188 14.7%
SR | Suburban Residential* 217 1.7%
RR | Rural Residential 334 26.1%

*Does not include approximately 55.5 acres of the Blue Slide Road Annexation

As the above table indicates, there is ample residential land, approximately 323 acres of lands

designated Urban Residential and a total of about 870 acres, to facilitate residential

development within the City. Atthis point in time there doesn’t appear to be need for additional
residential lands within the City. In contrast there is only about 33 acres designated for

Community Commercial development. Please refer to the Land Use Map included as
Attachment 3.

Again, referring to the current land use inventory only 2.6% or 33 acres of the City is zoned
Community Commercial. There are twenty (20) parcels in the City that area zoned Community
Commercial. Of those twenty parcels only four are vacant. Please refer to Table 2. Of the four
vacant parcels, only one parcel (APN's 052-232-005 & -010); located at the intersection of Davis
Street and Ireland Avenue is larger than a 2/3 of an acre or 30,055 square feet. The other three
vacant parcels are 6,724 square feet, 8,276 square feet and 14,460 square feet respectively.
The 14,460 square foot parcel (APN 052-211-022) is owned by the Baptist Church and is only
about 50 feet deep and about 300 feet wide. In addition, although not permanent, the southerly
portion of the parcel is developed with the Community Garden and Orchard. Staff believes that
the only parcel with realistic commercial development potential is APN’s 052-232-005 & -010.
This parcel is a little over a 1/3 of an acre and has excellent access and visibility making ideal
for future commercial development. Please refer to the map included as Attachment 2.

Table 2

Vacant Community Commercial Parcels

Assessor Parcel Size Developed Use Frontage Street Comments
Number Sq. Ft.
052-211-022 14,460 No Vacant Wildwood Avenue Parcel is 50'+/-
deep.
Development
potential is very
limited.
052-222-004 8,276 NO Vacant Wildwood Avenue Parcel is limited
and Center Street due to its size.
052-232-041 6,724 NO Vacant Davis Street Parcel is limited
due to its size.
052-232-005 & - 30,055 NO Vacant Davis Street and Very good
010 Ireland Avenue development
potential.

Albin General Plan Amendment & Zone Reclassification City Council June 19, 2012




According to both the General Plan and Zoning designations, the purpose of the Community
Commercial or CC land use and zoning designation is to provide for large-scale commercial
uses, including super-markets, offices, lodging and civic uses. In addition, all uses allowed as
conditionally permitted uses in the Neighborhood Commercial zone are also principally
permitted. Please refer to Attachments 5 and 6.

One of the twenty parcels is the Todd parcel discussed above and it does have very high
development potential. The Todd parcel is approximately 18 acres and is developed with a
single family residence and barn. As indicated above, the City pursued the purchase and
subsequent development of the parcel. Although the City offered the property owner $975,000
for the parcel, the property owner wanted $50,000 guaranteed should the City not be able to
complete the terms of the purchase agreement. As such, staff believes the City should not
count on this parcel being developed in the near future.

Notwithstanding the asking price ($385,000) of the parcel, past subdivisions of the parcel, which
reduced its size and the Gateway road improvements along the frontage of the parcel which will

require additional expenditures to develop may have an impact on the parcels commercial
viability.

The applicant’s agent has pointed out that the parcel has been on the market for close to 2 2
years. However this in itself has little, if any, bearing on the commercial viability of the parcel.
Real estate sales in general are down not only in Humboldt County, but throughout the country

as well. In addition, the applicant’s agent has provided the following justification on support of
the proposed amendments:

® Some commercial uses have developed northerly along Wildwood Ave. towards this site.
Further commercial development along Wildwood would continue the fragmentation of
the Town Center.

Staff disagrees. The commercial development of the parcel should not have an impact on the
“fragmentation” of the Town Center. In fact, it is staff's opinion that the commercial
development of properties adjacent to and visible from Highway 101 will help attract the
traveling public to the City, including the downtown area.

® Commercial development should be encouraged in the Town Center or adjacent to US
101 where it’s possible to draw the traveling public.

Staff agrees. Commercial development should be and is encouraged in the Town Center.

However, the Town Center and Community Commercial designations are intended to provide
different commercial use types.

® This parcel does not have good US 101 visibility and any commercial development here
would draw business away from Town Center.

Staff disagrees. The subject parcel and the Todd parcel provide the best highway visibility of
any of the parcels designated Community Commercial. Again, staff believes if we can
encourage the traveling public to notice commercial/shopping opportunities within the City that it
will help attract business to the down town area.

Albin General Plan Amendment & Zone Reclassification City Council June 19, 2012



® Raw land is more easily developed into today’s retail/commercial type businesses.

Converting existing structures into desirable retail space is difficult with today’s building
code requirements.

Staff agrees. This justification actually supports retaining the property as Community
Commercial. There are very few vacant parcels in the Town Center designation that can be
commercially developed. Again, the Town Center and Community Commercial designations
are intended to provide different commercial use types.

® Another problem with this parcel is that a commercial establishment would want to take
access from Wildwood Ave. which the City would prefer not to allow.

Staff disagrees. Access off of Wildwood Avenue was and is expected as part of any
commercial development of the site. In fact, the parcel’s location on Wildwood Avenue adjacent
to the Highway is one of the parcels attributes that is identified in the parcels multiple listing on
the Humboldt Association of Realtors website. Please see Attachment 7.

® Allowing this parcel to develop into a commercial enterprise would weaken the resolve to
maintain a core downtown area.

Staff disagrees. Again, the commercial development of the parcel should not have an impact on
the commercial viability of the Town Center. As indicated above, Town Center and Community
Commercial designations are intended to provide different commercial use types. Furthermore,
as previously indicated it is staff’s opinion that the commercial development of properties
adjacent to and visible from Highway 101 will help attract the traveling public to the City,
including the downtown area.

Based on the above discussion and the applicant’s justification, it is staff's opinion that the
proposed amendment to change the parcel from Community Commercial to Urban Residential
may not be in the public interest at this time. However, based on the information provided by

the applicant’s agent, the Commission could recommend that the proposed amendment is in the
public interest.

2. The proposed amendments are consistent and compatible with the rest of the General
Plan and any implementation programs that may be affected.

The purpose of the General Plan is to provide a balance of use types to encourage and facilitate
planned orderly development within the City. Below are goals and policies of the General Plan
associated with the proposed amendments:

® Promote a variety of commercial uses and allow light manufacturing in appropriate
commercial zones.

The various commercial designations are intended to provide a variety of commercial uses.
Based on the limited development potential of all lands designated Community Commercial, it is
staff's opinion that the removal of Community Commercially designated lands may be
premature at this time. Should base information and/or community values and assumptions
change, it would certainly be reasonable to reevaluate land use designations throughout the

City.

Albin General Plan Amendment & Zone Reclassification City Council June 19, 2012



® Provide sufficient land for business expansion and attraction of new employers by
designating a mixed use corridor along Wildwood Avenue and in the Town Center.

As previously discussed and documents, staff believes there is a very limited supply of suitable
land designated Community Commercial, especially Community Commercial land visible and
adjacent to Highway 101 and commercial land along the City's major thoroughfare.

® Encourage infill development of vacant and underutilized land in the Town Center before
amending the General Plan to allow additional commercial and residential land
elsewhere.

Staff believes amending the General Plan and Zoning designation from Community Commercial
to Urban Residential would conflict with this adopted policy. However, it could be argued that
amending the land use designation as requested could facilitate additional commercial
development in the Town Center.

® Monitor market demand for residential land and consider, where appropriate, changes in
the City General Plan Land Use Element and Zoning to ensure a balance in residential
uses and densities.

The applicant's agent has pointed to the fact that the parcel has been on the real estate market
for over 2 Y2 years. This could indicate that the demand for commercial land in Rio Dell is not
present.

At this point in time based on existing General Plan goals and policies, staff believes the
proposed amendments may not be consistent the General Plan and its implementation
policies and programs. However, the Commission could recommend approval if they believe
the proposed amendments would result in focusing commercial development in the Town
Center, which is consistent with an overall comprehensive view of the General Plan.

3. The potential impacts of the proposed amendments have been assessed and have
been determined not to be detrimental to the public health, safety, or welfare.

There is no evidence to suggest that the proposed amendments would be detrimental to the
public health, safety or welfare.

4. The proposed amendments have been processed in accordance with the applicable

provisions of the California Government Code and the California Environmental Quality
Act (CEQA).

State law requires that any amendment of a general plan comply with the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). The primary purpose of CEQA is to inform the decision
makers and the public of potential environmental effects of a proposed project. Since the
project is a discretionary action subject to CEQA, an Initial Study has been prepared to assess
environmental factors that could potentially be affected by the project. Because residential
development of the site is a “foreseeable” project under the proposed amendments, staff
evaluated the impacts of residential development on the site. Through preparation of the Initial
Study, it has been found that there will not be a significant effect in this case because features
of the project reduce impacts and mitigation measures have been included to further reduce
impacts to a less than significant level. These measures are documented in the Initial Study

Albin General Plan Amendment & Zone Reclassification City Council June 18, 2012



and Draft Mitigated Negative Declaration which has been prepared and is attached to this staff
report as Attachment 8. The Notice of Intent to adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration (finding
of no significant adverse environmental effect) on the project was mailed and posted on
February 28, 2012. Pursuant to Section 15073 of the CEQA Guidelines requires that the public
review period be not less than 20 days.

Financial Impact
The applicant is responsible for the costs associated with the proposed amendments.
Alternatives

The City Council may approve in whole or in part or deny of the proposed amendments. Should
the City Council believe the required findings can be made; the Council should introduce the
draft Ordinance and Resolution and continue the hearing to the meeting of June 5, 2012 for the
second reading, approval and adoption. Should the City Council believe the required findings
cannot be made; the Council should approve and adopt Resolution No. 1153-B-2012 denying
the proposed amendments.

Attachments

Attachment 1: Applicant’s justification regarding the proposed amendments. Previously
provided.

Attachment 2: Map of parcel and surrounding area.

Attachment 3: Map of Community Commercial parcels.

Attachment 4: Map of the four vacant Community Commercial parcels.

Attachment 5: Community Commercial Development Standards. Previously provided.
Attachment 6: Neighborhood Commercial Development Standards. Previously provided.
Attachment 7: Parcel's Multiple Listing advertisement. Previously provided.

Attachment 8: Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration. Previously provided.

Attachment 9: Draft Ordinance No. 290-2012 and Resolution No. 1153-A-2012 approving the
proposed amendments.

Attachment 10: Draft Resolution No. 1153-B-2012 denying the proposed amendments.

Albin General Plan Amendment & Zone Reclassification City Council June 19, 2012



Albin General Plan Amendment and Zone Reclassification

Applicant’s justification regarding the proposed amendments.

Previously provided.

Attachment 1



Albin m:»mqu_._mmm
Plan and Zoning Amendment

l_wh_ i) C\L

f it

W Fr

Project Description: >: mun__om:o: to m3m3a :._m current U_m: m:a _No:_:@ designation of >_uz omm-am-o@ ﬁmuuax_amﬁmq 3 moamv
from Community Commercial to Urban Residential.

Project Location: The project is located within the City of Rio Dell on the east side of Wildwood Avenue, north of Painter M : W
m V

Street and at the westerly ends of North Street and Pine Street.

Ty ol

.r— _:l_...-.,

Armacuamedr 2




i

R

B!

J

k1S

-
A9

w

2

]

T e
Y-
—

o o
Y
| Lot

g

SO O]

Albin Om:mﬂm_ _u_mJ >3m:a3m3 and No:m _mmo_mmm_ ication
Community Commercial Parcels




1

12
[

GRSk

t
P

ey
TS

e

o
O X
A

Aty
o

: m.r.a.ﬂ.. .Nu_
A0

26 - Ans A,

T Py

i < e :
ﬁmﬂ. &.ﬂ..‘. f.

Om:m_,m__ Plan >3m:a3m_3 and Zone xmo_mmmiomzo:
Vacant Community Commercial Parcels




Albin General Plan Amendment and Zone Reclassification

Community Commercial Development Standards.

Previously provided.

Attachment 5



Albin General Plan Amendment and Zone Reclassification

Neighborhood Commercial Development Standards.

Previously provided.

Attachment 6



Albin General Plan Amendment and Zone Reclassification

Parcel's Multiple Listing advertisement.

Previously provided.

Attachment 7



Albin General Plan Amendment and Zone Reclassification

Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration.

Previously provided.

Attachment 8



RESOLUTION NO. CC 1153-A-2012

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RIO DELL APPROVING THE
ALBIN GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT AND ZONE RECLASSIFICATION:

WHEREAS Andy Albin has made application to redesignate approximately 3 acres from
Community Commercial (CC) to Urban Residential (UR); and

WHEREAS the property was originally planned and zoned Residential Multiple Family (R-3) as
part of the City’s initial zoning designations after incorporation in 1965; and

WHEREAS the property was redesignated in 2004 to Community Commercial; and

WHEREAS it is in the City's and public's interest to encourage commercial development in the

"Town Center" and to discourage a commercial "strip mall" development along Wildwood Ave;
and

WHEREAS residential development of the parcel is consistent and compatible with the existing
residential neighborhood; and

WHEREAS commercial development of the parcel could weaken the City’s desire to maintain a
core downtown area; and

WHEREAS based on information on file, existing land use designations and the applicant’s

justification, the proposed amendment to change the parcel from Community Commercial to
Urban Residential is in the public interest; and

WHEREAS the General Plan calls to monitor market demand for residential land and consider,
where appropriate, changes in the City General Plan Land Use Element and Zoning to ensure a

balance in residential uses and densities; and

WHEREAS based on information from the applicant’s agent, the current demand for commercial
land is less than that for residential land; and

WHEREAS the General Plan encourages residential infill development of vacant and
underutilized land; and

WHEREAS based on existing General Plan goals and policies, the proposed amendments can
be found consistent the General Plan and its implementation policies and programs; and

WHEREAS the City has reviewed and processed the proposed amendment in conformance
with Sections 65350 — 65362 of the California Government Code; and

ALBIN GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT AND ZONE RECLASSIFICATION APPROVAL



WHEREAS the City has reviewed and processed the proposed amendment in conformance
with Section 17.30.010 of the City of Rio Dell Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS the City finds that based on evidence on file and presented in the staff report that
the potential impacts of the proposed amendment has been assessed and have been
determined not to be detrimental to the public health, safety, or welfare; and

WHEREAS the proposed amendment has been processed in accordance with the applicable

provisions of the California Government Code and the California Environmental Quality Act
(CEQA); and

WHEREAS an Initial Study has been prepared to assess environmental factors that could
potentially be affected by the project; and

WHEREAS through preparation of the Initial Study, it has been found that should the
amendments be approved, there will not be a significant effect in this case because features of
the project reduce impacts and mitigation measures have been included to further reduce
impacts to a less than significant level; and

WHEREAS pursuant to Section 15073 of the CEQA Guidelines requires that the public review
period be not less than 20 days; and

WHEREAS the Notice of Intent to adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration (finding of no

significant adverse environmental effect) on the project was mailed and posted on February 28,
2012.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Rio Dell approves
the Albin General Plan Amendment and Zone Reclassification of approximately 3 acres from
Community Commercial (CC) to Urban Residential (UR) ;).

| HEREBY CERTIFY that the forgoing Resolution was duly introduced at a regular meeting of
the City Council of the City of Rio Dell on May 15, 2012 and furthermore the forgoing Resolution
was passed, approved and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Rio
Dell, held on the 5" day of June 2012 by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Julie Woodall, Mayor
ATTEST:

Karen Dunham, City Clerk

ALBIN GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT AND ZONE RECLASSIFICATION APPROVAL



RESOLUTION NO. CC 1153-B-2012

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RIO DELL DENYING THE ALBIN
GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT AND ZONE RECLASSIFICATION:

WHEREAS Andy Albin has made application to redesignate approximately 3 acres from
Community Commercial (CC) to Urban Residential (UR); and

WHEREAS the property was originally planned and zoned Residential Multiple Family (R-3) as
part of the City’s initial zoning designations after incorporation in 1965; and

WHEREAS the property was redesignated in 2004 to Community Commercial; and

WHEREAS there is ample residential land, approximately 323 acres of lands designated Urban

Residential and a total of about 870 acres, to facilitate residential development within the City;
and

WHEREAS at this point in time there doesn't appear to be need for additional residential lands
within the City; and

WHEREAS in contrast there is only about 33 acres designated for Community Commercial
development; and

WHEREAS there are only twenty (20) parcels in the City that area zoned Community
Commercial; and

WHEREAS of those twenty parcels only four are vacant; and

WHEREAS of the four vacant parcels, only one parcel (APN’s 052-232-005 & -010); located at

the intersection of Davis Street and Ireland Avenue is larger than a 2/3 of an acre or 30,055
square feet; and

WHEREAS the other three vacant parcels are 6,724 square feet, 8,276 square feet and 14,460
square feet respectively. The 14,460 square foot parcel (APN 052-211-022) is owned by the
Baptist Church and is only about 50 feet deep and about 300 feet wide; and

WHEREAS based on information on file, existing land use designations and the applicant’s
justification, the proposed amendment to change the parcel from Community Commercial to

Urban Residential is not in the public interest at this time; and

WHEREAS the General Plan calls to promote a variety of commercial uses and allow light
manufacturing in appropriate commercial zones; and

ALBIN GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT AND ZONE RECLASSIFICATION DENIAL



WHEREAS based on the limited development potential of all lands designated Community
Commercial, it is staff's opinion that the removal of Community Commercially designated lands
may be premature at this time; and

WHEREAS the General Plan requires the City to provide sufficient land for business expansion

and attraction of new employers by designating a mixed use corridor along Wildwood Avenue
and in the Town Center; and

WHEREAS there is a very limited supply of suitable land designated Community Commercial,
especially Community Commercial land visible and adjacent to Highway 101 and commercial
land along the City’s major thoroughfare; and

WHEREAS the General Plan encourages infill development of vacant and underutilized land in
the Town Center before amending the General Plan to allow additional commercial and
residential land elsewhere; and

WHEREAS amending the General Plan and Zoning designation from Community Commercial
to Urban Residential would conflict with this adopted policy; and

WHEREAS based on existing General Plan goals and policies, the proposed amendments are
not consistent the General Plan and its implementation policies and programs; and

WHEREAS the City has reviewed and processed the proposed amendment in conformance
with Sections 65350 — 65362 of the California Government Code; and

WHEREAS the City has reviewed and processed the proposed amendment in conformance
with Section 17.30.010 of the City of Rio Dell Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS the City finds that based on evidence on file and presented in the staff report that
the potential impacts of the proposed amendment has been assessed and have been
determined not to be detrimental to the public health, safety, or welfare; and

WHEREAS the proposed amendment has been processed in accorda~nce with the applicable

provisions of the Califonia Government Code and the California Environmental Quality Act
(CEQA); and

WHEREAS an Initial Study has been prepared to assess environmental factors that could
potentially be affected by the project; and

WHEREAS through preparation of the Initial Study, it has been found that should the
amendments be approved, there will not be a significant effect in this case because features of
the project reduce impacts and mitigation measures have been included to further reduce
impacts to a less than significant level; and

WHEREAS pursuant to Section 15073 of the CEQA Guidelines requires that the public review
period be not less than 20 days; and

ALBIN GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT AND ZONE RECLASSIFICATION DENIAL



WHEREAS the Notice of Intent to adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration (finding of no

significant adverse environmental effect) on the project was mailed and posted on February 28,
2012.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Rio Dell denies the
Albin General Plan Amendment and Zone Reclassification of approximately 3 acres from
Community Commercial (CC) to Urban Residential (UR) ;).

| HEREBY CERTIFY that the forgoing Resolution was duly introduced at a regular meeting of
the City Council of the City of Rio Dell on May 15, 2012 and furthermore the forgoing Resolution
was passed, approved and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Rio
Dell, held on the 5™ day of June 2012 by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Julie Woodall, Mayor
ATTEST:

Karen Dunham, City Clerk

ALBIN GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT AND ZONE RECLASSIFICATION DENIAL



CiTY OF

675 Wildwood Avenue j Rjo E
Rio Dell, CA 95562 ": )
(707) 764-3532 DELL

—
CALFOMNA

For Meeting of: July 17, 2012

To: City Council
From: Kevin Caldwell, Community Development Director@
Through: Jim Stretch,nager
)/
Date: July 9, 2012
Subject: CDBG Owner Occupied Rehabilitation Guidelines

Recommendation:

That the City Council:

1. Receive staff's report regarding revisions to the CDBG Program Guidelines;
2. Re-Open the public hearing, receive public input and deliberate;

3. Adopt Resolution No. 1153-2012 amending the CDBG Program Guidelines.

Discussion

The Council has been considering changes to the CDBG Owner Occupied Rehabilitation
Guidelines. These changes include:

» Establishing a sliding scale interest rate of 1%, 2% and 3% based on income;
> Reducing the interest rate from 7% to 5% for Owner-Investor Units;

» Prioritizing Owner Occupied loans over Owner-Investor loans;

CDBG Guidelines July 17, 2012



> Appointing the City Manager, Finance Director and the Community
Development Director as the Loan Committee;

> Establishing the City Council as the Loan Appeal Committee.

At the meeting of July 3, 2012, the Council directed staff to check with the State regarding the
composition of the Loan Committee and establishing the City Council as the Loan Committee
Appeal body. The State indicated that the composition of the Loan Committee is up to the
local jurisdiction. However, they do recommend that the Loan Committee have a background
in finance and real estate underwriting. Below is a copy of the revised recommended
language:

9) LOAN COMMITTEE

A) Committee Composition

1. The Ioan committee shall consist ofan-edd—;wmber—ef—peﬁsens—melud-mg—at—least

Geuﬂeﬂ- the Cltv Manager, Finance Dlrector and Commumtv Development

Director. Appeals to the Loan Committee’s decision shall be heard by the City
Council.

Another point of discussion at the June 19" meeting was whether loan recipients were
required to maintain their homes as a condition of the loan. There is language in both the
Deed of Trust and the Deferred Loan Payment Agreement that does require the borrower to
maintain the property. Copies of these provisions are included as Attachments 2 and 3.

Once again staff has submitted the proposed revisions to the State for their review and
approval. The State has reviewed and preliminarily approved the recommended
changes. Once the Council adopts the Resolution amending the Guidelines, the State
has indicated that they will formally approve the changes.

Attachments

Attachment 1: Resolution No. 1153-2012 amending the City's Housing Rehabilitation Program
Guidelines.

Attachment 2: Portion of Deed of Trust regarding maintenance of property.

Attachment 3: Portion of Deferred Loan Payment Agreement regarding maintenance of
propenrty.

]

CDBG Guidelines July 17, 2012



RESOLUTION NO. 1153 - 2012

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RIO DELL AMENDING THE 2006
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) PROGRAM GUIDELINES

WHEREAS the existing CDBG Program Guidelines were adopted in 2006; and
WHEREAS the purpose of the program is to expand the supply of decent, safe, sanitary and
affordable housing; to correct health and safety hazards in deteriorated housing and to extend

the useful life of existing housing units; and

WHEREAS loans and grants are available to achieve cost-effective repairs for low income
owner occupied homes or for units occupied by low income tenants of owner-investors; and

WHEREAS the City took over administration of the program in June of 2011; and

WHEREAS staff has reformatted the Guidelines and determined that the Guidelines need to be
amended; and

WHEREAS the Guidelines currently refer to the Uniform Building Code which has been
superseded by the adoption of the California Building Code (CBC) in 2010; and

WHEREAS the current Guidelines refer to the 2006 income Eligibility and Rental Limitation
Requirements; and

WHEREAS the current interest rate for owner occupied rehabilitation loans is 3% simple
interest; and

WHEREAS in an attempt to encourage more residents to take advantage of the program, the
City would like to implement a sliding scale interest rate based on income; and

WHEREAS in an attempt to encourage Owner Investors to make improvements to their rental
units the City is reducing the interest rate from 7% to 5%; and

e

CDBG Guidelines City Council Resolution July 17, 2012



WHEREAS the current Guidelines do not specifically identify the terms and length of deferred
payments; and

WHEREAS the City Council would like to prioritize Owner Occupied Loans over Owner Investor
Loans; and

WHEREAS the City Council would like to establish the City Manager, Finance Director and the
Community Development Director as the Loan Committee; and

WHEREAS the City Council would like to consider and hear appeals to the Loan Committee’s
decisions.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Rio Dell hereby
amends the Guidelines as follows:

To reference the California Building Code; and

2. To reflect the current U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
(HUD) 2012 Income and Rental Limitation rates; and
3. To include a sliding simple interest rate scale for Owner Occupied

Rehabilitation Loans based on household income levels: Extremely Low
Income 1%; Very Low Income 2%; Low Income 3%; and

4. To reduce the interest rate for qualified Eligible Owner-Investor Units from the
current 7% interest rate to a 5% interest rate; and

5. To allow the loan to be deferred for a period up to fifteen (15) years and up to
thirty (30) years or time of sale or transfer for homeowners over 65 and/or
Extremely Low Income or Very Low Income; and

6. To establish Owner Occupied Loans as a priority over Owner Investor Loans;
and
T To establish that the City Manager, Finance Director and Community

Development Director as the Loan Committee; and
8. To establish the City Council as the appeal body of the Loan Committee’s
decision.

CDBG Guidelines City Council Resolution July 17, 2012



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the proposed changes will become effective upon written
approval from the Department of Housing and Community Development.

| HEREBY CERTIFY that the forgoing Resolution was duly noticed, introduced and approved at
a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Rio Dell on July 17, 2012 by the following

vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Julie Woodall, Mayor
ATTEST:

Karen Dunham, City Clerk

CDBG Guidelines City Council Resolution July 17, 2012



restoration or repair is not economically feasible or if the security of this Deed of Trust would be
impaired, the insurance proceeds will be applied to the sums secured by this Deed of Trust, with
the excess, if any, paid to Borrower. If the Property is abandoned by Borrower, or if Borrower
fails to respond to City within thirty (30) days from the date notice is mailed by City to
Borrower that the insurance carrier offers to settle a claim for insurance benefits, City is
authorized to collect and apply the insurance proceeds at City’s option either to restoration or
repair of the Property or to the sums secured by this Deed of Trust.

Unless City or Borrower otherwise agree in writing, any such application of proceeds to
principal will not extend or postpone the due date of the monthly installments referred to above
or change the amount of such installments. If the Property is acquired by City, all right, title and
interest of Borrower in and to any insurance policies and in and to the proceeds thereof resulting
from damage to the Property prior to the sale or acquisition will pass to City to the extent of the
sums secured by this Deed of Trust immediately prior to such sale or acquisition.

7 Preservation and Maintenance of Property. Borrower will keep the Property in
good repair and will not commit waste or permit impairment or deterioration of the Property.

3. Protection of City Security. If Borrower fails to perform the covenants and
agreements contained in this Deed of Trust, or stops the project, or if an event of default occurs
under any encumbrance, lien, assessment, mortgage or Deed of Trust, which has or which attains
priority over this Deed of Trust, or if any action proceeding is commenced which materially
affects City’s interest in the Property, including, but not limited to, eminent domain, insolvency,
code enforcement, or arrangements or proceedings involving a bankrupt or decedent, then City
at City’s option, upon notice to Borrower, may make such appearances, disburse such sums and
take such action as is necessary to protect City’s interest, including, but not limited to,
disbursement of reasonable attorney’s fees and entry upon the Property to make repairs.

Any amounts disbursed by City pursuant to this paragraph, with interest thereon, will
become additional indebtedness of Borrower secured by this Deed of Trust. Unless Borrower
and City agree to other terms of payment, such amounts will be payable upon notice from City
to Borrower requesting payment thereof, and will bear interest from the date of disbursement at
the rate payable from time to time on out standing principal under the Note unless payment of
interest at such rate would be contrary to applicable law, in which event such amounts will bear
interest at the highest rate permissible under applicable law. Nothing contained in this paragraph
will require City to incur any expense or take any action hereunder.

9. Imspection. City may make or cause to be made reasonable entries upon and
inspections of the Property, provided that City will give Borrower reasonable notice of
inspection.

10. Condemnation. The proceeds of any award or claim for damages, direct or
consequential, in connection with any condemnation or other taking of the Property, or part
thereof, or for conveyance in lieu of condemnation, are hereby assigned and will be paid to City.
In the event of a total taking of the Property, the proceeds will be applied to the sums secured by
this Deed of Trust, with the excess, if any, paid to Borrower. In the event of a partial taking of
the Property, unless Borrower and City otherwise agree in writing, there will be applied to the
sums secured by this Deed of Trust such proportion of the proceeds as is equal to that proportion
which the amount of sums secured by this Deed of Trust immediately prior to the date of taking
bears to the fair market value of the Property immediately prior to the date of taking, with the
balance of the proceeds paid to Borrower.

If the Property is abandoned by Borrower, or if, after notice by City to Borrower that the
condemnor offers to make an award or settle a claim for damages, Borrower fails to respond to
City within thirty (30) days after the date such notice is mailed, City is authorized to collect and
apply the proceeds, at City’s option, either to restoration or repair of the Property or to the sums

Page 3 of 6 CDBG Deed




10.

B.

C.

Assumption of the Loan as provided herein;

Termination for cause as otherwise provided herein.

General Terms.

A.

In the performance of this Agreement, neither Borrower nor City shall
discriminate against any provider, or potential provider, on the basis of race,
color, religion, ancestry, sex, age, national origin, physical handicap or any other
arbitrary factor.

Borrower agrees to indemnify, defend (including, but not limited to, attorney
fees and court costs) and save harmless the City, its officers, agents, and
employees, from any and all claims and losses accruing or resulting to Borrower
by any and all providers in connection with the performance of this Agreement,
and from any and all claims and losses accruing or resulting to any person, firm,
or corporation who may be injured or damaged by Borrower, or otherwise, in the
performance of this Agreement.

In the performance of this Agreement, Borrower, and any agents and employees
of Borrower, shall act in an independent capacity and not as officers or
employees or agents of the City.

Borrower shall maintain the property pursuant to the State Housing Law and any
applicable local ordinances or regulations and shall prevent and/or rectify any
waste or deterioration of the property. Borrower shall comply with all
requirements of Federal, State and local laws and ordinances pertaining to the
rehabilitation of the property and shall obtain all necessary permits and approvals
as required for lawful construction and completion of the project.

Borrower shall promptly comply with all requirements or conditions of this
Agreement relating to notices, extensions, and other events required to be
reported or requested.

Without the written consent of City, this Agreement is not assignable or
transferable by Borrower either in whole or in part.

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.

No alteration or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless
made in writing and signed by all parties hereto. No oral understanding or

agreement not incorporated in writing herein shall be binding on any of the
parties hereto.

Appeals. Borrower may appeal any program related matter in writing to the program
manager (currently Redwood Community Action Agency). The Program Manager shall
investigate the appeal and render a decision in writing within thirty (30) days from its
receipt. After exhausting the Program Manager appeal procedure, if dissatisfied with the
decision of the Program Manager, the aggrieved party may appeal in writing as follows:

Page 5 of 6 CDBG DPLA

AWA&L[M..GL " 5



T TR T e ————— ey CITY OF

675 Wildwood Avenue j R.' E
. Rio Dell, CA 95562 %
(707) 764-3532 DELL

—
CALEORNA

For Meeting of: July 17, 2012
To: City Council
From: Kevin Caldwell, Community Development Director@
Through: Jim Stretch, City ger
Date: July 13, 2012

Subject: Design Review Ordinance

Recommendation:

That the City Council:

1. Receive staff's report regarding the proposed Design Review Ordinance;
2. Open the public hearing, receive public input and deliberate;

3. Adopt Ordinance No. 291-2012 establishing Design Review Guidelines, Section
17.25.050 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC);

4, Adopt Resolution No. 1167-2012 establishing a Design Review deposit/fee.

5. Direct the City Clerk, within 10 days after adoption of the Ordinance, to post an adoption
summary of the Ordinance with the names of those City Council members voting for or
against, or otherwise voting in at least three (3) public places and to post in the office of
the City Clerk a certified copy of the full text of the adopted Ordinance pursuant to
Section 36933(a) of the California Government Code.

Summary

At your meeting of July 3, 2012 your Council introduced (first reading) Ordinance No. 291-2012
establishing Design Review Guidelines. The public hearing was opened and testimony was
provided regarding the proposed amendments. The public hearing was continued to this
meeting.

Design Review City Council July 17, 2012



As evidenced in the Staff Report prepared for the July 3, 2012 meeting, the process for the
Ordinance has been followed and staff believes the required Public Interest and General Plan
Consistency findings can be made.

Based on the nature of the project, staff determined that the project is Statutorily Exempt from
the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15061(b) (3) of the CEQA
Guidelines, Title 14, Chapter 3 of the California Code of Regulations. Pursuant to Section
15061(b) (3) of the CEQA Guidelines this exemption is covered by the general rule that CEQA
applies only to projects which have the potential for causing a significant effect on the
environment. Where it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the project in
question may have a significant effect on the environment, the project is not subject to CEQA.
Based on the nature of the proposed amendment, staff believes there is no evidence to suggest
that the amendment will have a significant effect on the environment.

The current fee schedule does not include a Design Review deposit/fee. Accordingly staff is
recommending that the Council establish the deposit at $500.00. As the Council is aware,
applicants are required to pay all actual costs based on current hourly burdened rates. Once
adopted, the fees are effective sixty days thereafter.

Attachments:

1. Ordinance No. 291-2012 establishing a Design Review Ordinance, Section 17.25.050 of
the Rio Dell Municipal Code.

2. Resolution No. 1167-2012 establishing a Design Review Deposit.

3. Revised Fee Schedule with Design Review deposit.

Design Review City Council July 17, 2012



ORDINANCE NO. 291 - 2012

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RIO DELL
ESTABLISHING DESIGN REVIEW REGULATIONS,
SECTION 17.25.050 OF THE RIO DELL MUNICIPAL CODE:

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RIO DELL DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

WHEREAS the General Plan contains policies that encourage architectural guidelines; and

WHEREAS the General Plan contains implementation measures that call for the development
of Design Review standards and guidelines; and

WHEREAS the purpose of the Design Review process is to promote orderly and harmonious
growth within the City; and

WHEREAS the Design Review process is intended to preserve and improve the scenic
amenities of the City and to protect the City's natural environment, its scenic vistas and the
community's overall aesthetic quality; and

WHEREAS the Design Review process encourages good quality design, including the use of
harmonious materials and colors, and the appropriate use of landscaping; and

WHEREAS in addition to protecting the City's scenic and natural resources, the Design Review
process is intended to protect and maintain property values; and

WHEREAS the intent of the Design Review process is to establish discretionary review of
development projects that require additional site and design considerations beyond
conformance with minimum standards of the Zoning Code; and

WHEREAS the City has reviewed and processed the proposed Design Review Ordinance in
conformance with Sections 65350 — 65362 of the California Government Code; and

WHEREAS the City has reviewed and processed the proposed Design Review Ordinance in
conformance with Section 17.30.010 of the City of Rio Dell Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS the City finds that based on evidence on file and presented in the staff report that
the proposed Design Review Ordinance is deemed to be in the public interest; and

WHEREAS the City finds that based on evidence on file and presented in the staff report that
the proposed Design Review Ordinance is consistent and compatible with a comprehensive
view of the General Plan and any implementation programs that may be affected; and

Design Review Ordinance, June 2012

A’--'A_..,.__ . 4



WHEREAS the City finds that based on evidence on file and presented in the staff report that
the potential impacts of the proposed Design Review Ordinance has been assessed and have
been determined not to be detrimental to the public health, safety, or welfare; and

WHEREAS the proposed Design Review Ordinance has been processed in accordance with
the applicable provisions of the California Government Code and the California Environmental
Quality Act (CEQA); and

WHEREAS the City has determined that the establishment of a Design Review Ordinance is
Statutorily Exempt pursuant to Section 15061(b) (3) of the CEQA Guidelines, Title 14, Chapter 3
of the California Code of Regulations.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Rio Dell:

1. Finds that the proposed Design Review Ordinance is in the public interest and consistent
with an overall comprehensive view of the General Plan; and

2. Finds that based on evidence on file and presented in the staff report that the potential
impacts of the proposed Design Review Ordinance have been assessed and have been
determined not to be detrimental to the public health, safety, or welfare; and

3. Approves the proposed Design Review Ordinance.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Rio Dell does hereby ordain as
follows:

Section 1.
1. Purpose and Intent

The purpose of the design review process is to promote orderly and harmonious growth within
the City. The intent of the design review process is to establish discretionary review of
development projects that require additional site and design considerations beyond
conformance with minimum standards of the Zoning Code. This Chapter also includes "Guiding
Principles” and "Design Concepts" to be used by the designated Approving Authority in
reviewing proposed projects for design consistency the City's standards.

2. Design Review Applicability

These regulations shall apply to lands designated with the Design Review Combining Zone “D”
on the Zoning Maps. In addition, except as otherwise exempt pursuant to Section
17.250.050(3) Design Review is required for the following:

(a) Major Subdivisions;

(b) Multi-family residential developments;

(c) Commercial development;

(d) Industrial development; and

(e) Public/quasi-public developments (e.g. public safety facilities, library, City facilities).

Design Review Ordinance, June 2012



3. Design Review Exemptions

The following structures and improvements are exempt from Design Review. However, such
structures may require additional permits, such as a ministerial building permit to ensure
compliance with adopted Building Code standards and applicable Zoning Code provisions.

(a) Additions to structures less than 10% of its existing size;

(b) Repairs and maintenance of site improvements or structures that do not add to,
enlarge, or expand the area occupied by the land use, or the floor area of the structure.
Exterior repairs that employ the same materials and design as the original construction
are also exempt from Design Review;

(c) Interior alterations that do not increase the gross floor area within the structure, or
change/expand the permitted use of the structure;

(d) Construction, alteration, or maintenance by a public utility or public agency of
underground or overhead utilities intended to service existing or nearby approved
developments (e.g., water, gas, electric or telecommunication supply or disposal
systems, including wires, mains, drains, sewers, pipes, conduits, cables, fire-alarm
boxes, police call boxes, traffic signals, hydrants, and similar facilities and equipment);

4. Approving Authority

The Approving Authority for Design Review shall be the Planning Commission. The Planning
Commission shall review and approve, conditionally approve, or deny Design Review
applications using the guiding principles and design concepts, application review process, and
findings identified herein. At any point in the future, the City Council may delegate the
Approving Authority for Design Review to the City Council, a Design Review Committee, the
Community Development Director and/or the City Manager. Subsequent delegation of
Approving Authority shall be adopted by Resolution, identifying the City's designated Approving
Authority, along with any special regulations for review and action on Design Review
applications.

Design Review approval is required prior to issuance of any ministerial building permits or site
improvement plans and prior to or in conjunction with discretionary action of corresponding
development applications (e.g., Maps, Conditional Use Permit, Variance), except as otherwise
exempted pursuant to Section 17.250.050(3) of this Chapter.

5. Guiding Principles and Design Concepts
This Chapter provides a set of "Guiding Principles" and "Design Concepts" setting forth various
aesthetic and functional provisions to guide residential, commercial, office, industrial and
public/quasi public development in the City. The "Guiding Principles" are listed below. Over
time, the City may, by ordinance amending this section, refine or expand these principles and
concepts to reflect the changing desires of the community.

® To encourage high quality land/site planning, architecture and landscape design;

® To ensure physical, visual, and functional compatibility between uses: and

® To ensure proper attention is paid to site and architectural design, thereby
protecting land values.

Design Review Ordinance, June 2012



The designated Approving Authority under this Chapter shall have the authority to apply the
"Guiding Principles" flexibly to account for circumstances relating to the site, provided the
required findings in Section 17.250.050(8) are made and using the following Design Concepts:

(a) Residential Subdivisions. The following Design Concepts generally apply to major
subdivisions (e.g. five or more parcels) of land for residential purposes. Some of the Design
Concepts will not apply, to certain projects due to the size of the development. However, these
concepts will be applied whenever possible in the design of residential and mixed use projects.
The City encourages:

(1) A balanced mix of land uses, including housing, schooling, and parks/open space, to meet
the needs of residents as appropriate based on project scale. Large scale development
proposals should also provide for employment, commercial/retail, recreational and
entertainment needs of community residents.

(2) Pedestrian friendly neighborhoods, which are walkable in size with an obvious center. The
neighborhood center should be a place of social interaction with a combination of commercial,
civic, cultural and recreational uses.

(3) Housing diversity with a variety of housing types, sizes, and densities.

(4) Vehicle, bicycle, and pedestrian, and transit connectivity throughout the neighborhood and
with the surrounding neighborhoods and uses. More specifically, neighborhoods should be
designed with an interconnected street system that will blend well into the existing street
system, diffuse traffic within the neighborhood, and minimize barriers within and between
neighborhoods.

(5) Where feasible, joint-use of open space facilities such as drainage facilities, detention
basins, utility corridors etc. for trails, bikeways and Parks.

(6) Maintaining significant natural features (e.g., terrain, drainage, vegetation).

(7) Minimization of urban runoff through the use of retention and detention facilities and the use
of open bio-swale drainage channels

(8) Pedestrian friendly streetscapes that may include orientation of homes to common areas,
parks, or other open space areas.

(9) Where feasible, design streets with separated sidewalks that incorporate a planter strip
between the back of curb and sidewalk.

(b) Residential Multi Family. The following Design Concepts apply to the review of residential
multi-family development. The City encourages:

(1) Mass, scale and architecture which is compatible with existing and adjacent
neighborhoods. The intent is to encourage appropriate transitions between uses and
structures of varying residential density and a general compatibility of architectural styles.

(2) Original designs that are tailored to the site and discourage monotonous or institutional
type buildings and site design.

Design Review Ordinance, June 2012



(3) Site designs that preserve, enhance and incorporate the significant natural features of a
site as an element within the overall design.

(4) High quality building designs that consist of durable and maintainable materials for the
exterior treatment of the buildings that complement the building mass and articulation.

(6) The establishment of a streetscape presence and appearance through setbacks,
landscaping, building placement, and architecture that defines the pedestrian and vehicular
corridor and presents an appealing and continuous theme along a sidewalk, street or trail.

(6) Landscaping that softens the appearance of pavement and structures, and provides an
eventual tree canopy along the street and pedestrian walkways.

(7) Ensure that design provisions do not preclude the development of multi-family housing
affordable to all income levels.

(c) Non-Residential Site Planning. The following Design Concepts apply to site planning and
design for non-residential (commercial, office, industrial, and public/quasi-public) development.
The City encourages:

(1) Design of new development with particular attention to compatibility between non-
residential and adjacent residential uses/properties within the project vicinity.

(2) A unified design theme for integrated developments. All buildings within an integrated
development shall be designed consistent with the approved design theme.

(38) Pedestrian-friendly design which incorporates pedestrian amenities and outdoor gathering
places into the project design with consideration given to the climate and planned use of space.

(4) A streetscape appearance that defines the pedestrian and vehicle corridor and presents an
appealing and continuous theme along a sidewalk or street.

(5) Office and light industrial parks and integrated employment campuses that provide outdoor
areas for eating and sitting, retail and service venues as appropriate, and other amenities for
project employees.

(6) Design flexibility for mixed-use development that ensures compatibility of use types and
promotes beneficial relationships among uses.

(7) Where feasible, design streets with separated sidewalks that incorporate a planter strip
between the back of curb and sidewalk.

(d) Non-Residential Architecture. The following Design Concepts apply to non-residential
(commercial, office, industrial, and public/quasi-public) development. The City encourages:

(1) High quality building designs that consist of durable and maintainable materials and that
provide visual interest and diversity to the community.

(2) Use of an architectural style and or/theme for new non-residential development that is
consistent for building elevations of a single structure or consistent among all buildings within
an integrated development.

Design Review Ordinance, June 2012



(3) Design of buildings or structures that are sensitive to the neighborhood character with
regard to scale, architectural style, use of materials and bulk.

(4) Interesting and attractive architecture which includes varied relief of the facade elements
and detailed articulation of the building features.

(5) Incorporate quality site design, including landscaping, signage and other elements of site
design.

6. Scope of Design Review

To implement the principles and concepts in Section 17.250.050(5) the scope of Design
Review is listed below by land use type. Applications for Design Review shall include adequate
information to evaluate the project. Specific application submittal requirements shall be listed
on the application form distributed by the Planning Department.

(a) Neighborhood Design - Major Subdivisions:
Relationship of land uses and density
Lot configuration and orientation
Street design/relationship to existing street network
Orientation to open space and significant natural features
Bikeways, trails and pedestrian facilities and connectivity with other development

(b) Multi-family Developments:
Architecture- style, mass and scale, articulation, materials, and relationship to
surrounding use and style
Site plan- unit placement, garage location
Landscaping and lighting for Multi-Family developments
Streetscape design
Fences and walls
Solar access and shading

(c) Non-residential Development (commercial, office, industrial, and public/quasi-public)
Architecture- style or theme, mass and scale, articulation, materials, relationship to
surrounding use and style
Site plan- building location/orientation to street, parking, grading, relationship to
surrounding property
Access- vehicular and pedestrian
Pedestrian amenities
Landscaping and lighting
Edge treatment between uses and different zones
Loading and services (trash and recycling)

Mechanical screening
Signs

7. Design Review Process

(a) Application Submittal. Design Review applications shall be submitted to the Planning
Department on a City application form. All plans shall be professionally drawn by qualified
individuals, drawn at a reasonable scale to clearly identify the improvements and shall be on 18”
X 24" or 24” x 36" and shall conform to the following requirements:

Design Review Ordinance, June 2012



® Building Plans and Elevations shall identify the materials, colors, textures, etc.

® Landscaping Plans shall include common name, botanical name, size of
plants/trees at planting and maturity, location, spacing, lawns, hardscape,
walkways, streetscape furniture (i.e. benches, bicycle racks, art, water features,
kiosks, bus shelters, etc.), ground cover, weed treatment, finished contours,
parking areas, curbs, gutters, sidewalks and the edge of pavement.

@ Irrigation Plans shall include location of sprinkler heads, and/or drip irrigation,
location and size of irrigation pipe, water meters, backflow prevention devices,
control valves, etc.

® Photometric Plans shall include the type, location, height, style and limits of the
predicted maintained lighting levels of the proposed lighting fixtures.

® Sign Plans shall include the location, type (e.g. wall mounted, monument, pylon),
size, color, font styles and lighting details.

(b) Application Review. Design Review shall generally occur within the framework of other
project reviews/approvals associated with a given project. In such cases, the Planning
Department shall circulate the project for review and comment by appropriate departments,
entities, and agencies prior to public hearing by the designated Approving Authority. Where no
other discretionary action is associated with a project that is subject to Design Review, the
Planning Director shall, within 15 working days of application submittal, determine whether or
not the application is complete. The applicant is encouraged to contact staff prior to submitting
the application for a preliminary review of the project. The applicant shall be notified in writing of
the determination of application completeness. Once any required review by related
departments, entities, and agencies has been completed, the Planning staff shall prepare a
report to the designated Approving Authority on the project with a recommendation for approval,
conditional approval or denial of the Design Review application. Planning staff shall be
responsible for assimilating the comments and recommendations of related departments and
agencies into project modifications or Conditions of Approval, as well as to ensure conformance
with applicable provisions of the Municipal Code, and any subsequently adopted standards,
guidelines, or area plans.

(c) Environmental Review. The project shall be reviewed in accordance with the
environmental review procedures of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Design
Review shall generally not result in the need for CEQA evaluation for a project that is
otherwise exempt.

(d) Notice and Hearing/Determination. Public notice and hearings for Design Review
applications under consideration by the designated Approving Authority shall be conducted in
accordance with Chapter 17.35 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC). The notice shall
identify the subject parcel, describe the request, and identify the date of the meeting. The
notice shall also identify the opportunity to provide input prior to the determination and the
right to appeal the determination in accordance with this Chapter.

(e) Appeals. Appeals shall be conducted in accordance with Section 17.35.050 of the Rio
Dell Municipal Code (RDMC).

Design Review Ordinance, June 2012



8. Design Review Determination

(a) Findings for Design Review Approvals. Design Review approvals shall be granted only
when the designated Approving Authority makes all of the following findings:

(1) The proposed project is consistent with the objectives of the General Plan, complies with
applicable Zoning regulations, Specific Plan provisions, Special Planning Area provisions,
and is consistent with the applicable "Guiding Principles" and "Design Concepts" in Section
17.250.050(5) Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC).

(2) The proposed architecture, site design, and landscape are suitable for the purposes of the
building and the site and will enhance the character of the neighborhood and community.

(3) The architecture, including the character, scale and quality of the design, relationship with
the site and other buildings, building materials, screening of exterior appurtenances, exterior
lighting and signing and similar elements establishes a clear design concept and is compatible
with the character of existing or anticipated buildings on adjoining and nearby properties.

(4) The proposed project will not create conflicts with vehicular, bicycle, or pedestrian
transportation modes of circulation.

(b) Additional Findings for Residential Design Review Applications. Design Review
applications for single-family residential subdivision maps shall be granted only when the
designated Approving Authority makes the additional finding that the residential subdivision is
well integrated with the City's street network, creates desirable neighborhood environments,
reflects traditional architectural styles, and establishes a pedestrian friendly environment.

(c) Conditions. The designated Approving Authority may require modifications to plans in
whole or in part and may condition the Design Review application to ensure specific design
features, construction materials, and conformance with all applicable provisions of this chapter.

(d) Permit Issuance. Approval of the Design Review application shall only become valid upon
completion of the designated ten-day appeal period.

(e) Permit Term. Where Design Review is approved in conjunction with a related action, the
Design Review approval shall remain valid for a period consistent with related review/approval.
Where no other discretionary review/approval is required, the Design Review approval shall be
valid for a period of three (3) years from the date of final approval.

Section 2. Severability

If any provision of the ordinance is invalidated by any court of competent jurisdiction, the
remaining provisions shall not be affected and shall continue in full force and effect.

Section 3. Limitation of Actions

Any action to challenge the validity or legality of any provision of this ordinance on any grounds
shall be brought by court action commenced within ninety (90) days of the date of adoption of
this ordinance.

Design Review Ordinance, June 2012



Section 4. CEQA Compliance

The City Council has determined that the adoption of this ordinance is exempt from review
under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), subject to Section 15061 of the CEQA
Guidelines. Due to the nature of the proposed code revisions, there is no evidence that any
impact to the environment would occur as a result of adoption of the Ordinance. Any
environmental affects associated with adoption and implementation of the Ordinance would be
beneficial in nature.

Section 5. Effective Date

This ordinance becomes effective thirty (30) days after the date of its approval and adoption.

| HEREBY CERTIFY that the forgoing Ordinance was duly introduced at a regular meeting of
the City Council of the City of Rio Dell on July 3, 2012 and furthermore the forgoing Ordinance
was passed, approved and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Rio
Dell, held on the 17" of July 2012 by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Julie Woodall, Mayor
ATTEST:

Karen Dunham, City Clerk

Design Review Ordinance, June 2012



RESOLUTION NO. 1167 - 2012

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RIO DELL
ESTABLISHING DESIGN REVIEW DEPOSIT/FEES:

WHEREAS the City of Rio Dell is authorized by Article XlII of the California Constitution and the
California Government Code to charge fees to cover the costs of permit processing; and

WHEREAS various provisions of Sate law provide that fees for planning services cannot exceed
the actual costs of processing applications; and

WHEREAS the current Fee Schedule does not include a Design Review deposit/fee; and
WHEREAS applicants are required to pay all actual costs; and

WHEREAS the City has provided notice of the open and public hearing regarding the proposed
deposit/fee in accordance with Sections 66016 of the California Government Code; and

WHEREAS the adoption of fees and charges for development project review is statutorily
exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 21080(b)(8)
of the Public Resources Code; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council approves and adopts the
following:

Section1. Findings

1. The Design Review deposit/fee established herein will not exceed the costs associated
with processing required permits.

2. A duly noticed public hearing on the proposed fees was conducted in the manner
prescribed by applicable provisions of State law.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council approves and adopts
the following:

1. A $500.00 deposit shall be required at the time of application for Design Review
projects.

2. The fee for Design Review shall not exceed the costs associated with processing
required permits.

3. The deposit/fee shall be effective sixty (60) days from the date of adoption.

Design Review Deposil/Fee Resolution

Aa .. .. - o



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Rio Dell at their meeting of July 17,
2012 by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Julie Woodall, Mayor of the City of Rio Dell

ATTEST:

Karen Dunham, City Clerk

e e S R
Design Review Deposit/Fee Resolution






CITY OF

675 Wildwood Avenue

Rio Dell, CA 95562

(707) 764-3532 DE LL
e

CALIFORNIA

TO: Honorable Rio Dell City Council

FROM: Jim Stretwy Manager

DATE: July 17,2012

SUBIJECT: 2" reading and adoption of Street Improvement Assessment

Project Ordinance No. 293-2012

COUNCIL ACTION:

A. By motion, open public hearing for 2" reading, and then approval of
Ordinance No. 293-2012, calling for an election, and ordering the
submission of a proposition of incurring bonded debt for the purpose of
construction of street improvements to qualified voters at the general
election to be held on November 6, 2012.

RECENT BACKGROUND:

On July 3, 2012, the City Council discussed the fact that Measure X on the June 5,
2012 special election, concerning a special street improvement assessment, failed
to pass by a mere 25 votes. Many community members were encouraged that the
vote was so close and urged the Council to double their efforts and try again.

Also on November 3, 2012 the City Council directed staff to work with legal
counsel to prepare a voter petition for immediate circulation to gather signatures to
qualify the proposition for the November 6, 2012 election. Based on the advice of
the County Election Division, the number of qualified signatures needed is 71. The
City Clerk is to submit the petition signatures to County Elections on 7-17-12 to
have them verify the signatures. She will report that result at the 7-17-12 meeting.



On July 10, 2012 the City Council: 1) determined the public interest and necessity
for street improvements financed by the issuance of general obligation bonds, and
approved Resolution approved Resolution No.1163-2012, 2) approved Resolution
No. 1164-2112 requesting the County to include Rio Dell’s special improvement
measure on the November 6, 2012 ballot, and 3) opened the noticed public and had
the first reading of Ordinance 293-2012, by title only, calling an election and
ordering the submission of a proposition to incur bonded debt for street

improvements to the voters at the general municipal election on November 6,
2012.

Ordinance No. 293-2012 is now ready for the second and final reading. Pursuant to
Elections Code section 36937(a) the Ordinance becomes effective at the time of
passage, if adopted by two-thirds vote of all members of the City Council.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION PREVIOUSLY PRESENTED

As most citizens know firsthand the majority of City streets are badly in
need of repair. Some are so deteriorated that if they are not overlaid soon they will
have to be reconstructed at significantly higher costs and for which the City has not
the financial resources. The cost to re-construct a city street is about ten times the
cost of an asphalt overlay. Other streets need a slurry seal-coat in order to extend
their useful life and prevent the need for additional costly maintenance in the near
future. A County pavement study in 2010 concluded that the City had the worst
rated streets in the entire County.

The reason the streets are in such a condition is simple — the City has not had
adequate revenue to fund the necessary maintenance required to keep streets in
proper condition. Maintenance has been deferred for too many years and now the
cost of addressing the situation on a City wide basis is far beyond the financial
ability of the City.

Bad streets are not just a driving inconvenience; they are also a prominent
factor that reduces the value of one’s home abutting such a street. In some cases
this cost could be in the neighborhood of $15,000 to $20,000 or more. Bad streets
also make it more difficult to sell a home and in some cases can deter a buyer from
even making an offer.

Adequate street maintenance is every citizens concern because even if your
property is not located on a bad street, you probably have to drive on a bad street to



navigate the City and the image that bad streets portrays indirectly impacts the
image and value of your property.

To address this situation it is proposed to implement a Street Improvement
Assessment Project, similar to the measure that appeared on the June 5, 2012 ballot
which garnered 62.7% of the vote, 25 votes from the 66-2/3approval threshold.

THE STREET IMPROVEMENT ASSESSMENT PROJECT:

The proposed Street Improvement Assessment Project encompasses either
providing an asphalt overlay or slurry seal-coat over about 11.5 miles of City
streets, constituting roughly 80% of all the streets in the City. Not considering
Wildwood Avenue which was recently paved with federal grant funds, the
percentage jumps to nearly 89 % of all other City streets.

A map available at Hall shows which streets are proposed for an asphalt
overlay or slurry seal-coat. An asphalt overlay is what was done recently to
Wildwood Avenue as well as small sections of other City streets such as West
Center Street adjacent to Firemen’s Park. Although there are no examples of
slurry seal-coat in the City, a slurry seal-coat is a premium version of a chip seal
that is typically used to extend the life of asphalt pavement.

The cost of the Street Improvement Assessment Project is estimated to be
$2,825,000. In order to complete all of the work at once, which will significantly
reduce the unit cost; it is proposed that the City issue General Obligation (G.O.)
Bonds. The bonds would be paid over a 15 year term by an assessment on every
property in the City based on assessed value.

To reduce the project cost and therefore the assessment to property owners,
it is proposed that the City contribute funding in the total amount of $825,000. The
source of this funding would be $300,000 in street reserves and $525,000 in
General Fund reserves. Consequently, only $2,000,000 will have to be bonded and
repaid by property assessments.

The City has had discussions with the United States Department of
Agriculture (USDA) regarding purchasing the G.O. Bonds. The current interest
rate is 3.75% which is a very low rate for 15 year funding and may not be available
in future years.



The City has preliminarily estimated the annual cost, which is based on
assessed value, to average homeowners in three neighborhoods: the First to Third
Avenue area - $122.00, the Ogle Avenue/Bellview Road area - $137.00, and the
Riverside Drive area - $155.00. Note that the initial annual cost noted above is
projected to decline every year over the 15 year term.

In order for the City to assess any property the project must be placed on the
ballot for the November 6, 2012general election. Two thirds (66.6666%) of the
votes cast would have to support the project in order for bonds to be sold and the
project implemented. Consequently, it will be solely up to the voters if this project
becomes a reality.

The specific ballot measure would read:

STREET IMPROVEMENTS BOND MEASURE

"To finance the costs of constructing street improvements consisting of either an
asphalt overlay or slurry seal-coat to existing streets in the City of Rio Dell, in
order to improve the driving surface and extend the useful life of the roadways
in the most economical manner possible, shall the City of Rio Dell issue $2 million in
general obligation bonds, maturing 15 years from their issue date, and bearing interest at
a rate not in excess of 4.25%7”

YES NO

In order to fully inform voters about the project and answer questions, City
staff proposes to hold a series of informal neighborhood meetings this summer and
fall, as well as mailings.

The advantages of supporting the project include:

e 11.5 miles of poorly maintained streets will be repaired at one
time improving driving conditions and better looking.

e The improved streets will be more bicycle friendly.

o The City can contribute to reducing the total cost by $825,000
or about 30%.

e The project can be financed over 15 years at an interest rate of
about 3. 75%, this may not be available again.

o Significant repair of City streets will likely increase the value of
most City properties.



ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RIO DELL
CALLING AN ELECTION AND ORDERING THE SUBMISSION OF A
PROPOSITION OF INCURRING BONDED DEBT FOR THE PURPOSE

OF THE CONSTRUCTION AND COMPLETION OF STREET

IMPROVEMENTS, TO THE QUALIFIED VOTERS OF THE CITY OF RIO

DELL AT THE GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION TO BE HELD ON
NOVEMBER 6, 2012

WHEREAS, on July 10, 2012, this City Council adopted, by a two-thirds vote of all the
members of said Council, a Resolution entitled "A Resolution of the City Council of the City of
Rio Dell Determining That the Public Interest and Necessity Demand the Construction and
Completion of Street Improvements, and Their Financing Through the Issuance of General
Obligation Bonds" (the "Resolution”); and

WHEREAS, in order to provide for the issuance by the City of its general obligation
bonds to finance the costs of constructing street improvements consisting of either an asphalt
overlay or slurry seal-coat to approximately 11.5 miles of existing streets in the City, in order to
measurably improve the driving surface and extend the useful life of over 80% of all the
existing roadways in the most economical and cost effective manner possible (the
"Improvements"), it is necessary for this Council to pass an ordinance ordering the submission
of the proposition of incurring bonded indebtedness for such purpose to the qualified voters of
the City at an election; and

WHEREAS, a General Election for the City is to be held on Tuesday, November 6, 2012;
and

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to submit to the voters at said election the
proposition of incurring bonded indebtedness as hereinafter set forth; and

WHEREAS, at least 15% of the qualified voters of the City as shown by the votes cast for
all candidates for Governor at the last election have signed and submitted to the City Clerk a
petition to the City Council requesting submission of such a proposition.

Now therefore, the City Council of the City of Rio Dell does ordain as follows:

SECTION 1. That the following question shall be submitted to the voters of the City at
the General Election to be held on November 6, 2012:

STREET IMPROVEMENTS BOND MEASURE

"To finance the costs of constructing street improvements consisting of either an
asphalt overlay or slurry seal-coat to existing streets in the City of Rio Dell, in



order to improve the driving surface and extend the useful life of the roadways
in the most economical manner possible, shall the City of Rio Dell issue $2
million in general obligation bonds, maturing 15 years from their issue date, and
bearing interest at a rate not in excess of 6%?”

YES NO

SECTION 2. The object and purpose of incurring the indebtedness is to finance the costs
of constructing the Improvements described in the recitals to this Ordinance.

SECTION 3. The estimated cost of the portion of the costs of the Improvements to be
paid for from the City’s general obligations bonds is Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000), the City
having determined to contribute approximately $850,000 of its general funds towards the cost
of the Improvements. The estimated cost includes legal and other fees and the cost of printing
the bonds and other costs and expenses incidental to or connected with the authorization,
issuance and sale of bonds. The cost of constructing the Improvements in excess of $2,000,000
will be paid for from other funds of the City.

SECTION 4. The amount of the principal of the indebtedness to be incurred is not to
exceed Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000).

SECTION 5. The maximum rate of interest to be paid on the indebtedness shall be six
percent (6%) per annum.

SECTION 6. This City Council does hereby call an election on Tuesday, November 6,
2012, and submit to the qualified voters of the City, at said election, the proposition set forth in
Section 1 hereof. The City proposes to acquire, construct and complete the Improvements, and
to issue and sell General Obligation Bonds of the City pursuant to Article 1, commencing with
Section 43600, of Chapter 4 of Division 4 of Title 4 of the California Government Code and/or
Article 4.5, commencing with Section 53506, of Chapter 3 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5 of the
California Government Code, in one or more series, in the maximum amount and for the
objects and purposes set forth above, if two-thirds of all qualified voters voting on the
proposition set forth above vote in favor thereof. The bonds are to be general obligations of the
City, payable from and secured by taxes levied and collected in the manner prescribed by laws
of the State of California. All of said bonds are to be equally and ratably secured, without
priority, by the taxing power of the City.

SECTION 7. That in all particulars not recited in this Ordinance, the election shall be
held and conducted as provided by law for holding municipal elections. That pursuant to the
requirements of section 10403 of the Elections Code, the Board of Supervisors of the County of
Humboldt is hereby requested to consent and agree to the consolidation of the City’s municipal
election with the Statewide General Election on Tuesday, November 6, 2012, and said election
shall be held in all respects as if there were only one election and only one form of ballot shall
be used.



SECTION 8. Each voter to vote for the proposition and for the incurring of said
indebtedness shall fill in the oval to the left of the word "YES" on the ballot below the
proposition heading; and each voter to vote against the proposition and against the incurring of
said indebtedness shall fill in the oval to the left of the word "NO" on the ballot below the
proposition heading.

SECTION 9. Notice of the time and place of holding the election is given and the City
Clerk is authorized, instructed, and directed to give further or additional notice of the election,
in the time, form, and manner required by law.

SECTION 10. This Ordinance shall be published once a day for at least seven days in a
newspaper printed, published and circulated at least six days a week in the City, or once a
week for two weeks in a newspaper printed, published and circulated less than six days a week
in the City. The first of said publications shall, in either event, be within fifteen (15) days after
the adoption of this ordinance. The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to make said
publications and to transmit, for receipt no later than July 18, 2012, a certified copy of this
Ordinance to the Board of Supervisors (the “Board of Supervisors”) of Humboldt County (the
“County”), and a copy with the County Clerk of the County and the Registrar of Voters of the
County. The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to make any changes to the text of
the Measure as required to conform to any requirements the Act or the Registrar of Voters of
the County.

SECTION 11. The Board of Supervisors is hereby authorized to canvass the returns of
the Bond Election herein authorized.

SECTION 12. The Board of Supervisors is hereby requested to issue instructions to the
County Elections Department to take any and all steps necessary for the holding of the said
consolidated elections.

SECTION 13. As required by Section 53410 of the Government Code, a statement in
substantially the following form shall be included in the Bond measure, and the City Council

covenants to comply with the reporting requirements contained in Section 53411 of the
Government Code:

Accountability Measures

As required by Section 53410 of the Government Code, the following
accountability measures are hereby made a part of the City’s Bond Measure __ (the
“Measure”):

a) The specific purpose of the bonds is to finance the costs of
constructing street improvements consisting of either an asphalt overlay or
slurry seal-coat to approximately 11.5 miles of existing streets in the City, in
order to measurably improve the driving surface and extend the useful life of
over 80% of all the existing roadways in the most economical and cost effect
manner possible;



b) The proceeds from the sale of the City’s bonds will be used only for
the purposes specified in the Measure, and not for any other purpose;

c) The proceeds of the Bonds will be deposited into a street
improvement construction fund to be held by the City; and

d) The Finance Director of the City shall file an annual report with the
City Council of the City, commencing not later than one year after the bonds
have been issued, and annually thereafter until the project is complete, which
report shall contain pertinent information regarding the amount of funds
collected and expended, as well as the status of the street improvement
project listed in the Measure.

SECTION 14. That the City of Rio Dell recognizes that additional costs will be incurred
by the County by reason of this consolidation and agrees to reimburse the County for any costs.

SECTION 15. That the ballots to be used at the election shall be in form and content as
required by law.

SECTION 16. That the City Clerk is authorized, instructed and directed to have the
Humboldt County Election Department procure and furnish any and all official ballots, notices,
printed matter and all supplies, equipment and paraphernalia that may be necessary in order to
properly and lawfully conduct the election.

SECTION 17. That the polls for the election shall be open at 7:00 o’clock a.m. of the day
of the election and shall remain open continuously from that time until 8:00 o’clock p.m. of the
same day when the polls shall be closed, except as provided in Section 14401 of the Elections
Code of the State of California.

SECTION 18. The City Council directs the City Clerk to transmit a copy of the measure
to the City Attorney, who shall prepare an impartial analysis of the measure showing the effect
of the measure on the existing law and the operation of the measure.

SECTION 19. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately as an ordinance
relating to an election pursuant to Government Code section 36937(a) upon its adoption by
two-thirds vote of all the members of this City Council.

* ¥ % ok ¥



On motion of Council Member , seconded by Council Member
, the above ordinance was introduced with the first reading waived at a
special meeting of the City Council on the 10th day of July, 2012, and passed and adopted at a
regular meeting of said Council held on the 17th day of July, 2012, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

Julie Woodall, Mayor

ATTEST:

Karen Dunham, City Clerk



CITY STREETS TO BE IMPROVED

"*\\N\‘\f € otljg B‘“f‘r
X=RI0 DELL ~

X I WUNBOLDT COUNTY
| =3 CALIFORNIA 7

Surky  SeA)- coat

= Walnut Drive « |’

— Asplaall O\Jer\aux



	7.17.12AgendaPart1
	7.17.12AgendaPart2

